
           
The City of Muskogee encourages participation from all its citizens in public meetings. If participation is not possible due to a disability, notify the Planning
Department, in writing, at least forty-eight hours prior to the scheduled meeting and necessary accommodations will be made (ADA 28 CFR/36).

POSTING DATE:  June 24, 2024

AGENDA
UNIFORM BUILDING CODE APPEALS BOARD

JUNE 26, 2024

REGULAR SESSION - 1:30 P.M., COUNCIL CHAMBERS, MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 229. W.
OKMULGEE AVENUE, MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA
  

ROLL CALL

 
           

1. Consider approval of the Uniform Building Code Appeals Board Special Session Meeting
minutes of May 1, 2024, or take necessary action.

 

2. Hold a public hearing on the appeal of the findings that the structure at 321 E Okmulgee is
dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to
constitute a public nuisance, and/or whether the building is abandoned, or take other necessary
action (11 O.S. 22-112 (C); 11 O.S. 22-112.4). (Jody King)

 

3. Hold a public hearing on the appeal of the findings that the structure at 210 N Main Street is
dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to
constitute a public nuisance, and/or whether the building is abandoned, or take other necessary
action (11 O.S. 22-112 (C); 11 O.S. 22-112.4). (Jody King)

 

4. Hold a public hearing on the appeal of the findings that the structure at 800 S 32nd is dilapidated
and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute
a public nuisance, and/or whether the building is abandoned, or take other necessary action (11
O.S. 22-112 (C); 11 O.S. 22-112.4). (Jody King)

 

5. Hold a public hearing on the appeal of the findings that the structure at 316 N Main is dilapidated
and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute
a public nuisance, and that the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property;
and that the building is abandoned, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112 (C); 11 O.S.
22-112.4). (Jody King)
 

 

6. Hold a public hearing on the appeal of the findings that the structure at 909 W Okmulgee is



6. Hold a public hearing on the appeal of the findings that the structure at 909 W Okmulgee is
dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to
constitute a public nuisance, and that the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to
other property; and that the building is abandoned, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112
(C); 11 O.S. 22-112.4). (Jody King)
 

 

7. Hold a public hearing on the appeal of the findings that the structure at 1918 E Okmulgee is
dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to
constitute a public nuisance, and that the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to
other property; and that the building is abandoned, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112
(C); 11 O.S. 22-112.4). (Jody King)
 

 

8. Hold a public hearing on the appeal of the findings that the structure at 228 S D St is dilapidated
and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute
a public nuisance; and that the building is abandoned, or take other necessary action (11 O.S.
22-112 (C); 11 O.S. 22-112.4). (Jody King)
 

 

ADJOURN



   
Uniform Building Code Appeals Board Agenda 1.        
Meeting Date: 06/26/2024  
Initiator: Josie Graves, Admin I

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of the Uniform Building Code Appeals Board Special Session Meeting minutes of
May 1, 2024, or take necessary action.

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDED STAFF ACTION:

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
24-0501 Minutes 



MINUTES
OF THE UNIFORM BUILDING CODE APPEALS BOARD

OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA
MET IN REGULAR SESSION

IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS OF CITY HALL
MAY 1, 2024

The Uniform Building Code Appeals Board of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, met in Regular
Session at 1:30 p.m., on May 1, 2024, in the Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 229 W. Okmulgee
Ave., Muskogee, Oklahoma. 
 

Without a quorum present, this meeting's items were tabled to May 29, 2024.
 

Present: Dennis Moore, Chair; MeKeion Payne, Vice Chair; Tim Hollifield, Board Member; Lake
Moore, Board Member; Art Smith, Board Member 

 

               
1     Hold a public hearing on the appeal of the findings that the structure at 210 N

Main Street is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or
welfare of the general public as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or whether
the building is abandoned, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112 (C);
11 O.S. 22-112.4). (Jody King)

  

 
There being no further business, the meeting was tabled. 



   
Uniform Building Code Appeals Board Agenda 2.        
Meeting Date: 06/26/2024  
Initiator: Sarah Winkle, Deputy Director of Planning and Community Development

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Hold a public hearing on the appeal of the findings that the structure at 321 E Okmulgee is dilapidated
and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute a public
nuisance, and/or whether the building is abandoned, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112 (C);
11 O.S. 22-112.4). (Jody King)

BACKGROUND:
An exterior inspection of the property and structure occurred on 3/19/2024 by the City Building
Inspector. These are the findings from those inspections:
  

The structure has broken windows that need to be replaced. *108.1.5 IPMC
The structure is unsecure. *108.1.5 IPMC
The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2
IPMC 

Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the
municipality;
Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire
protection costs; and
Devalues abutting and nearby real properties

Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section
22-112(C) and permits and repairs must be made to make this safe and fit for habitation and
occupancy. *108.1.3 & 108.1.1 IPMC
The structure has an exposed roof.  *108.1.5
The structure is open to the elements.  *108.1.5

Corrective Actions recommended in the letter sent to the property owners were:
Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing
and mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective
International Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary and safe
condition. Roof shall be repaired or replaced. Exterior doors and windows must be replaced where
necessary to ensure they are in sound condition, good repair, and weather tight. Doors shall provide for
the security of occupants within, equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior doors shall fit reasonably well
within the frame, capable of being opened and closed, as intended by the manufacturer. The interior shall
be brought to good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Accumulated rubbish, trash and
debris, including all non-working equipment shall be removed. Any fractures in concrete, masonry,
stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.

PNRC was held on April 18, 2024 and the findings were that the building is dilapidated and has become
detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute a public nuisance, and
creates a fire hazard, which is dangerous to other property, and the building is abandoned.  

RECOMMENDED STAFF ACTION:
Uphold the findings of the PNRC and approve the structure for demolition.



Uphold the findings of the PNRC and approve the structure for demolition.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Complete Case File 















































 



MINUTES OF THE
PUBLIC NUISANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE
OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA

APRIL 18, 2024

 
The Public Nuisance Review Committee of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, met in a Regular
Schedule Meeting at 11:00 a.m., on April 18, 2024, at 229 W. Okmulgee Ave., 3rd Floor, Council
Chambers, Muskogee, Oklahoma.
 

The meeting was called to order at 11:00 A.M. and the roll was called as follows:
 

Present:  Jody King, Director of Planning & Community Development; Jeff Strickland, Interim
Chief Building Inspector; Ruben Gonzalez, Interim Code Enforcement Supervisor 

Staff Present:  Sarah Winkle, Associate Planner

Attendees:  Kristi Dorris for Joann Baker
Matt Hudspeth, 2612 W Broadway

 

               
1. Hold a Public Hearing and determine if the property located at 800 S 32nd is dilapidated

and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public and the
community as to constitute a public nuisance; and/or whether the property creates a fire
hazard which is dangerous to other property; and/or whether the building is abandoned,
or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112(C); 11 O.S. 22-112.4).  (Jody King)

Legal Description:
Lots 4 and 5 in Block 4 of ELMWOOD PLACE ADDITION to the City of Muskogee,
according to the official plat thereof, Muskogee County, Oklahoma, more particularly
described as follows:

AND

A piece or parcel of land located in Lots 6, 7, and 8 of Block 4 in ELMWOOD PLACE
ADDITION to the City of Muskogee, according to the Official plat thereof, Muskogee
County, Oklahoma, more particularly described as follows:
Beginning at a point on the east line of Lot 8, 20.0 feet northerly of the southeast corner
of said Lot 8; thence westerly parallel with the south line of Lot 8 for a distance of
153.84 feet to a point in the easterly right of way line of U. S. Highway No. 69; thence
northerly along the east right of way line of U. S. Highway No. 69 for a distance of
190.0 feet to a point on the south line of Lot 6, said point being 153.97 feet westerly of
the southeast corner of said Lot 6; thence westerly along the south line of Lot 6 for a
distance of 25.0 feet; thence northerly along the easterly right of way of U. S. Highway

  



distance of 25.0 feet; thence northerly along the easterly right of way of U. S. Highway
No. 69 for a distance of 105 feet to a point on the north line of said Lot 6; thence easterly
along the north line of Lot 6 for a distance of 179.04 feet to the northeast corner of said
Lot 6; thence southerly along the east line of Lots 6, 7, and 8 for a distance of 295.0 feet
to the point of beginning.

AND

A piece or parcel of land located in Lots 9, 10, and 11 of ELM RIDGE ACRES
ADDITION to the City of Muskogee, according to the official plat thereof, Muskogee
County, Oklahoma, more particularly described as follows:
Beginning at the southwest corner of Lot 11; thence northerly along the west line of Lots
9, 10 and 11 for a distance of 445.0 feet to a point, said point being 31.0 feet northerly of
the southwest corner of said. Lot 9; thence easterly parallel with the south line of Lot 9
for a distance of 122.0 feet; thence southerly parallel with the west line of Lots 9 and 10
for a distance of 238.0 feet to a point on the north line of Lot 11, said point being 122.0
feet easterly of the northwest corner of said Lot 11; thence easterly along the north line
of Lot 11 for a distance of 78.0 feet; thence southerly, parallel with the west line of Lot
11 for a distance of 207.00 feet to a point on the south line of Lot 11, said point being
200.0 feet easterly of the southwest corner of Lot 11; thence westerly along the south
line of Lot 11 for a distance of 200.0 feet to the point of beginning.

AND

The west 78 feet of the east 228 feet of Lot 10 and the west 200 feet of the south 100
feet of Lot 9 less the south 31 feet of the west 122 feet thereof in ELM RIDGE ACRES
ADDITION to the City of Muskogee, according to the official plat thereof, Muskogee
County, Oklahoma

 
 
  Motion was made by Director of Planning & Community Development Jody King, 

seconded by Interim Code Enforcement Supervisor Ruben Gonzalez Mr. Soraya was
unable to be present at this meeting and sent a letter discussing the property and the
engineering report (available via public records request).

Jody King read the letter in its entirety aloud.

The item was tabled to the Public Nuisance Review Committee on May 23, 2024. 

  AYE:  Director of Planning & Community Development Jody King, Interim Chief
Building Inspector Jeff Strickland, Interim Code Enforcement Supervisor
Ruben Gonzalez 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
2. Hold a Public Hearing and determine if the property located at 2612 W Broadway is   



2. Hold a Public Hearing and determine if the property located at 2612 W Broadway is
dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general
public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance; and/or whether the property
creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property; and/or whether the building is
abandoned, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112(C); 11 O.S. 22-112.4).  (Jody
King)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
Lot 10 in Block 2 of Westmoreland Subdivision, according to the official plat,
Muskogee, Oklahoma

  

 
  Motion was made by Director of Planning & Community Development Jody King, 

seconded by Interim Code Enforcement Supervisor Ruben Gonzalez The Public
Nuisance Review Committee found the structure to be detrimental to the health,
safety, and general welfare of the general public as to constitute a public nuisance;
the property creates a fire hazard; the property is abandoned.  

  AYE:  Director of Planning & Community Development Jody King, Interim Chief
Building Inspector Jeff Strickland, Interim Code Enforcement Supervisor
Ruben Gonzalez 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
3. Hold a Public Hearing and determine if the property located at 321 E Okmulgee is

dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general
public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance; and/or whether the property
creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property; and/or whether the building is
abandoned, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112(C); 11 O.S. 22-112.4).  (Jody
King)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
A part of Lot 2, in Block 387, of the City of Muskogee, more particularly described as
follows: Beginning at the Northeast corner of said Lot 2; thence southerly in a straight
line to a point in the South line of said lot which is 9 feet westerly from the Southeast
corner thereof; Thence Westerly along the Southerly line of said lot a distance of 100
feet; Thence Northerly in a straight line to a point in the Northerly line of said lot which
is 100 feet Westerly from the Northeast corner thereof; Thence Easterly to the point of
beginning.

  

 
  Motion was made by Director of Planning & Community Development Jody King, 

seconded by Interim Code Enforcement Supervisor Ruben Gonzalez The Public
Nuisance Review Committee found the structure to be detrimental to the health,
safety, and general welfare of the general public as to constitute a public nuisance;
the property creates a fire hazard; the property is abandoned. 
  

  AYE:  Director of Planning & Community Development Jody King, Interim Chief
Building Inspector Jeff Strickland, Interim Code Enforcement Supervisor
Ruben Gonzalez 

Carried - Unanimously 



 
 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned.



















 

 

03/21/2024 

 
Walter Ridge, Registered Service Agent 

Why Fund Inc. 

321 E Okmulgee St 

Muskogee, OK 74403 

Case Number: 24-00073379 

Street Address: 321 E Okmulgee St 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

 

 

ORDER TO REPAIR AND/OR TAKE OTHER CORRECTIVE ACTION 

The City of Muskogee identifies unlawful violations of the International Property Maintenance Code (“IPMC”), 

as adopted by the City of Muskogee under City Codes §18-184 and §18-185, and further identifies structures that 

have become dilapidated per Oklahoma State Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) or abandoned per Section 22-

112.4. These violations constitute a public nuisance and must be abated. An exterior inspection of the property 

and structure you own at the aforementioned address occurred on 03/19/2024 by the City of Muskogee Building 

Inspector. Below are the findings of the Building Inspector with applicable provisions of the IPMC and/or state 

statute, as well as, corrective action which is hereby ordered to bring the property into compliance with City Code.    

 

FINDINGS BY THE BUILDING INSPECTOR: 

 The structure has broken windows that need to be replaced. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is unsecure. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2 IPMC 

o Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the 

municipality; 

o Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire protection 

costs; and 

o Devalues abutting and nearby real properties 

 Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-

112(C) and permits and repairs must be made to make this safe and fit for habitation and occupancy. 

*108.1.3 & 108.1.1 IPMC 

 The structure has an exposed roof.  *108.1.5 

 The structure is open to the elements.  *108.1.5 

 

CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing and 

mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective International 

Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe condition. Roof  shall 

be repaired or replaced. Exterior doors and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound 

condition, good repair, and weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants within, equipped with 

a deadbolt lock. Interior doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being opened and closed, as 

intended by the manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary 

condition. Accumulated rubbish, trash and debris, including all non-working equipment shall be removed. Any 

fractures in concrete, masonry, stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.  

You are hereby directed to appear at a hearing to be held on April 18th at 11:00 a.m. before the Public 

Nuisance Review Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma 

74401 to determine:  

 























































   
Uniform Building Code Appeals Board Agenda 3.        
Meeting Date: 06/26/2024  
Initiator: Sarah Winkle, Deputy Director of Planning and Community Development

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Hold a public hearing on the appeal of the findings that the structure at 210 N Main Street is dilapidated
and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute a public
nuisance, and/or whether the building is abandoned, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112 (C);
11 O.S. 22-112.4). (Jody King)

BACKGROUND:
An exterior inspection of the property and structure occurred on 3/12/2024 by the City Building Inspector
and the City Fire Marshall. These are the findings from those inspections: 

The structure has broken windows that need to be replaced. *108.1.5 IPMC
The structure back door is open and not secured and will need to be secured. *108.1.5 IPMC
The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2
IPMC 

Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the
municipality;
Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire
protection costs; and
Devalues abutting and nearby real properties

Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section
22-112(C) and permits and repairs must be made to make this safe and fit for habitation and
occupancy. *108.1.3 IPMC

Corrective Actions recommended in the letter sent to the property owners was:
Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing
and mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective
International Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe
condition. Exterior doors and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound
condition, good repair, and weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants within,
equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being
opened and closed, as intended by the manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair,
structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Stairs, landings, balconies and similar walking surfaces,
which are not properly anchored, shall be secured. Accumulated rubbish, trash and debris, including all
non-working equipment shall be removed. Any fractures in concrete, masonry, stucco shall be repaired.
Pest problems shall be abated.

PNRC was held on April 4, 2024 and the findings were that the building is dilapidated and has become
detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute a public nuisance, and
the building is abandoned.  

RECOMMENDED STAFF ACTION:
Uphold the findings of the PNRC and approve the structure for demolition.



Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Complete Case File 





















Business Services Notary Charitable Organizations Open Meetings Agricultural Liens 

Moma : au■M•H se,--lce■ 1 C«II' Search : corp Information 

Entity Summary Information 

Select the buttons bek>w to file or place an 
order. 

To view Enijty Detalls the,., will be a $5.00 
cherge ■nd you wfll r,eed to dick on vtl!W 
INTITY DffAJUI button at the bottom of the 
Poge. 

U you •re ord1r1ri9 documents such •s • 
"Certlncate of Good Standing" or "coplH" you 
WIii need to dlclc on the ORD!R OOCIIM!NTS 
buttan at the bottom or the paae. 

Jr you are flUn9 • legi•t document such 11 • 
trade n1m•� amendment, annual certiftcate, etc,, 
you wlll need to die� on l'IU A OOC:UM!NT 
button ■t th• bottom i;>f th■ page. 

:UO MAIN HOLDINGS LLC 

Details 

Filing Number: 

Nama Type; 

Status; 

Corp lyp&'. 

JurtsdicUon: 

Formation Date: 

3512944086 

Legal Name 

Inactive (!I 

Domestic Limited Liability Company 

Oklahoma 

13 Apr 2021 

Registered Agent 1nrormatIon 

Name: 

Effective· 

Address: 

UNIT 1867 

City, Stale , ZlpCoda: 

RBI ENTERPRISES LLC 

13 Apr 2021 

1701 S MAIN ST 

BROKEN ARROW OK 74012 

1-Enlly Dotal 11 Flu a-.11 Onto, DocuMft1I 11 Now- I

Visit Ok.gov Site Map Accesstblllty Disclaimer 

Executive Legislative 

Copyright C lOl't Oklahom• Seciret.ry ot suite 





tion being filed 
against you through 

Beginning. 

Iha Municipal Court of • 2812 W Broadway, 

AFFIDAVIT OF 

PUBLICATION 

the City of Muskogee, Muskogee OK 

County of Muskogee, 
State of Oklahoma 

The Muskogee Phoenix 
214 Wall S 
Muskogee, Ok, 74402 
918-684-2858

CASE: 

U0CJr8 [' 
• 

Publlllled In The 
MulkogNPhoenlx 

llayl, 2024 

NOTICEAND 
ORDERTO 
PROPERTY 

Oklahoma. 

Should you fall 10 
appear, the City of 
Muskogee may pro-. 
ceed with Iha damoll· 
t1on or the slructure. If 

1he City or Its agents 
perfonn the demoll
tlon, you WIii be billed 
for the8e oosts. 
Failure 10 pay within 
six (8) months of lhe 
statement will result 

L Kristina Hight, of lawful age, being duly sworn OWNERS 

In the C0818 being 
assessed as an ad 
valorem tax on the 
propetty. Payment of 
demolttlon C08la,!!!O 
beQomell the personal 
obligation of the prop
erty owner and may 
be collecled In accor• 
dance wlfh any olher 
clvll remedy provided 
by law. 

upon oath, deposes and says that I am the Classified You ant hereby-nol-
Advisor of The Muskogee Phoenix, a daily/weekly fled that1he proper-

publication that is a "legal newspaper" as that phrase is - ::!,�� :::
defined in 25 O.S. § 106, as amended to date, for the , forhumanoccupancy 
City of Muskogee, for the County of Muskogee, in the •• at an admnlstrallve 

hearing held before 
State of Oklahoma. The attachment hereto contains a the Bulkllng Olflcial. If you have any ques

tions regarding this 
order, you may con
tact Iha City of 
Muskogee Code 
Enforcement 
Depar1ment at (916) 
884-6235. 

true and correct copy of what was published in the Because you have 
failed 10 bring the 

regular edition of said newspaper, and not in a structure up-1o code 
supplement, in consecutive issues on the followin2: within the time period - : provided, the struc-dates: ue 18 being consid-

PUBLICATIONS: M'MMini rJ:!I 
Kristina Hight ttq ' 

ered for conderma
tlon due 10 Its dlapl· 
dated condilkHL The [210 N Main $1reet, 
property will be poat- Muskogee OK 
ed and placarded In 
accordance with Part of Lot One (1 ), In 
Secllon 108.4 of the Block Two (2), In the. 

Signed and sworn to before me 
On this 8 day of May 2024. 

Ju 

My C mission expires: I0-17-202 
Commission # 17009583 

(SEAL) 

Accnt: 

Fee:$ 

UX/(7 
lOl, 35 

lnwnado11al Property CITY OF MUSKO-
Malntenance Code GEE, according 10 Iha 
adopted by the City of offtclal Plat hnof, 
'Muskogee. Muskogee County, 

: Stale ofotdahoma. 
• Ahel1tnrr8hall be --. more'pa,11cularty

held by lhe Uniform delcribed as follows; 
Building Code Beginning at 8 point 

• Appeala Board to on the w...,ty Line 
• delannlne H the prop- of said Lot 1, 55 ieet

e,ty Is dllapidated and Soul'8fly from the 
• has become detrt- lnt8l'88Cllon of the 

mental to 1he health, Easterly 11ne. of Ncx1tl 
safety, or welfare of Main Street with lhe 
the general public Soulherly Ana of the 
and the oommunily, or 12 foot alley running 
If the property crea188 E8IIINly and Westedy 

• a fire hazMf which Is lhrough aaid Block 2; 
dangerous 10 oll8r Thence from aald 
property, or whether point Southerty along 
the building Is aban- the w..-ey line of 
doned. aald Lot 1 a clstence 

of 49.82 feet which 
You are hereby 11111d point Is alao 
ordered 10 appear at 77.93 feet North of 
said hearing in Inn the North line of West 
of the City of Broadway; Thence

• Muekogee Unllonn North we· Ea dle-
BuDding Code tance of 171 f8el to 8 
AppNII Board on point In the Eut lne 

" ... � ......... ,,, .... •.121nt 
1 :30 P.M. In lhe Clly Is 104.1 feet South of 
CculCI Chambers on lhe SOuth lne of 1he � the third tloof of 1he aforementioned -
City Hal at 229 West and 78.1 fNI Nol'lh of 

• Okmulgee, Muskogee the North llne of West
OK, 74401. You have Broadway;Thence 
lhe tight lo appear at Norther1y along the 
Iha � hearing East line of said Lot 1 

• and preeenl evidence • a dlatance of 49.1
related 10 the above feet ID a point 55 feet 
llsted property. If you South of the SOlllh 
fall to appear,-. decl-- -Hoe otsald alley, " slon will be made IA Thence Wester1y In a 
your absence and a direct straight line 
dllapldallon 118n could parallel wllh the 
be filed on � prop- South Ina of the 
e,ty. Failure lo appear aforemenlloued alley 
and be heard may 171 feel more or less 

Lot 1 o In Block 2 of 
Westmoreland 
Subdlvlslon, aoc:ord
lng 10 lhe official plat, 
Muskogee, Oklahoma 

321 E Okmulgee, 
Muskogee OK 

A part of Lot 2, in 
Block·387, of 1he City 
of Muskogee, more 
par1icular1ydesaibed 
as follows: Beginning 
at 1he Northeast cor
ner of 88id Lot 2; 
thencll IOUlherly In a. 
straight Una to a point 
Jn��llne of 
said lot which is 9 
feet westerly from 1he 
Soulheest comer 
thereof;Thence 
Westerty along the 
Southerly Hne of said 
lot 8 dlatance of 100 
feet; Thence 
Notther1y In a straight 
line to a point In the 
Northef1y line of said 
lot which Is 100 feel 
Westerly from the 
Northeast comer 
thereof; Thence 
Easterly to Iha point 
of beginning.) 

swinkle
Highlight

swinkle
Highlight



 

NOTICE AND ORDER TO PROPERTY OWNERS 

 

You are hereby notified that the properties listed below were found unsafe or unfit 

for human occupancy at an administrative hearing held before the Building Official. 

Because you have failed to bring the structure up-to code within the time period 

provided, the structure is being considered for condemnation due to its dilapidated 

condition. The property will be posted and placarded in accordance with Section 

108.4 of the International Property Maintenance Code adopted by the City of 

Muskogee. 

 

A hearing shall be held by the Uniform Building Code Appeals Board to determine if 

the property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or 

welfare of the general public and the community, or if the property creates a fire 

hazard which is dangerous to other property, or whether the building is 

abandoned. 

 

You are hereby ordered to appear at said hearing in front of the City of Muskogee 

Uniform Building Code Appeals Board on the: May 29, 2024 at 1:30 P.M. in the City 

Council Chambers on the third floor of the City Hall at 229 West Okmulgee, 

Muskogee OK, 74401. You have the right to appear at the scheduled hearing and 

present evidence related to the above listed property. If you fail to appear, a 

decision will be made in your absence and a dilapidation lien could be filed on your 

property. Failure to appear and be heard may also result in a citation being filed 

against you through the Municipal Court of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma. 

 

Should you fail to appear, the City of Muskogee may proceed with the demolition of 

the structure. If the City or its agents perform the demolition, you will be billed for 

these costs. Failure to pay within six (6) months of the statement will result in the 

costs being assessed as an ad valorem tax on the property. Payment of demolition 

costs also becomes the personal obligation of the property owner and may be 

collected in accordance with any other civil remedy provided by law. 

 

If you have any questions regarding this order, you may contact the City of 

Muskogee Code Enforcement Department at (916) 684-6235. 

 

[210 N Main Street, Muskogee OK  

 



Part of Lot One (1), in Block Two (2), in the CITY OF MUSKOGEE, according to the 

official Plat thereof, Muskogee County, State of Oklahoma, more particularly 

described as follows; Beginning at a point on the Westerly Line of said Lot 1, 55 feet 

Southerly from the Intersection of the Easterly line of North Main Street with the 

Southerly line of the 12 foot alley running Easterly and Westerly through said Block 

2; Thence from said point Southerly along the Westerly line of said Lot 1 a distance 

of 49.62 feet which said point is also 77.93 feet North of the North line of West 

Broadway; Thence North 89°8’ E a distance of 171 feet to a point in the East line of 

said Lot, said point is 104.1 feet South of the South line of the aforementioned alley 

and 78.1 feet North of the North line of West Broadway; Thence Northerly along the 

East line of said Lot 1 a distance of 49.1 feet to a point 55 feet South of the South 

line of said alley; Thence Westerly in a direct straight line parallel with the South line 

of the aforementioned alley 171 feet more or less to the Point of Beginning. 

 

 

2612 W Broadway, Muskogee OK 

 

Lot 10 in Block 2 of Westmoreland Subdivision, according to the official plat, 

Muskogee, Oklahoma 

 

 

321 E Okmulgee, Muskogee OK 

 

A part of Lot 2, in Block 387, of the City of Muskogee, more particularly described as 

follows: Beginning at the Northeast corner of said Lot 2; thence southerly in a 

straight line to a point in the South line of said lot which is 9 feet westerly from the 

Southeast corner thereof; Thence Westerly along the Southerly line of said lot a 

distance of 100 feet; Thence Northerly in a straight line to a point in the Northerly 

line of said lot which is 100 feet Westerly from the Northeast corner thereof; 

Thence Easterly to the point of beginning. 

] 

























April 5, 2024 

210 Main Holdings LLC 

P.O. Box 1867 

Broken Arrow, OK 74013-0000 

Case Number:      24-73361 

Street Address:    210 N Main St 

Legal Description:    See Attached 

DETERMINATION OF THE PUBLIC NUISANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE FOR A DILAPIDATED 

STRUCTURE 

The property at the aforementioned address was reviewed by the Public Nuisance Review Committee on April 

4, 2024 and determined: 

1) Your property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general

public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or

2) Your building is abandoned.

You are hereby notified that The City of Muskogee has granted you an automatic appeal to the Uniform 

Building Codes Appeals Board to be heard on May 1, 2024 at 1:30 P.M. The hearing will held at 229 W. 

Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma  74401 to determine whether the 

corrective action has made sufficient progress to no longer be deemed dilapidated or to uphold the findings 

of the Public Nuisance Review Committee as mentioned above. You must attend the hearing or take 

corrective action on your property by May 1, 2024. 

If you have any questions regarding this, you may contact the Code Enforcement Department at (918) 684-6235. 

If you wish to have the structure voluntarily abated by the City of Muskogee, a discount demolition program is 

available on a first come, first serves basis. If you are interested in signing up for the program, please contact 

Michael Brackeen, Code Enforcement Supervisor for more information. 

Ruben Gonzalez 

Code Enforcement Officer 



 









 

 

April 5, 2024 

 
RBI Enterprises LLC 

1701 S. Main St 

Broken Arrow, OK 74012-0000 

Case Number:      24-73361 

Street Address:    210 N Main St 

Legal Description:    See Attached 

  

DETERMINATION OF THE PUBLIC NUISANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE FOR A DILAPIDATED 

STRUCTURE 

 

The property at the aforementioned address was reviewed by the Public Nuisance Review Committee on April 

4, 2024 and determined: 

 

1) Your property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general 

public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or  

2) Your building is abandoned. 

 

You are hereby notified that The City of Muskogee has granted you an automatic appeal to the Uniform 

Building Codes Appeals Board to be heard on May 1, 2024 at 1:30 P.M. The hearing will held at 229 W. 

Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma  74401 to determine whether the 

corrective action has made sufficient progress to no longer be deemed dilapidated or to uphold the findings 

of the Public Nuisance Review Committee as mentioned above. You must attend the hearing or take 

corrective action on your property by May 1, 2024. 

 

If you have any questions regarding this, you may contact the Code Enforcement Department at (918) 684-6235. 

If you wish to have the structure voluntarily abated by the City of Muskogee, a discount demolition program is 

available on a first come, first serves basis. If you are interested in signing up for the program, please contact 

Michael Brackeen, Code Enforcement Supervisor for more information. 

 

Ruben Gonzalez 

Code Enforcement Officer 



 



MINUTES OF THE PUBLIC NUISANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE
OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA

 
The Public Nuisance Review Committee of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, met in a Regular
Schedule Meeting at 11:00 a.m., on April 4, 2024, at 229 W. Okmulgee Ave., 3rd Floor, Council
Chambers, Muskogee, Oklahoma.
 

The meeting was called to order at 11:00 A.M. by Jody King, Director of Planning & Community
Development, and the roll was called as follows:
 

Present:  Jody King, Director of Planning & Community Development; Jeff Stirckland, Interim
Chief Building Inspector 

Absent:  Michael Brackeen, Code Enforcement Supervisor 

Staff Present:  Sarah Winkle, Associate Planner
Ruben Gonzalez, Code Enforcement Officer

 

               
1. Approve the minutes of the Public Nuisance Review Committee from Thursday, February

22, 2024, or take other necessary action
  

 
   A motion was made by Jody King Director of Planning & Community

Development, seconded by Jeff Strickland, Interim Chief Building Inspector, to table
the meeting until the Committee can determine the outcome of 407 W Broadway. 

  AYE:  Director of Planning & Community Development Jody King, Interim Chief
Building Inspector Jeff Stirckland 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
2. Hold a Public Hearing to determine if the property located at 210 N. Main Street is

dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general
public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance; and/or whether the property
creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property; and/or whether the building is
abandoned, and make an appropriate recommendation to the Uniform Building Code of
Appeals Board, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112 (C); 11 O.S. 22-112.4).
 (Jody King)

  

 
  Motion was made by Director of Planning & Community Development Jody King, 



  Motion was made by Director of Planning & Community Development Jody King, 
seconded by Interim Chief Building Inspector Jeff Stirckland A motion was made by
Jody King, Director of Planning & Community Development, seconded by Jeff
Stirckland, Interim Chief Building Inspector, to find the structure at 210 N Main st as
dilapidated, unsafe, and abandoned as to constitute a public nuisance and should be
demolished; the property is hereby granted an automatic appeal to the Uniform
Building Code Appeals Board for further investigation and recommendation.

Sarah Winkle, Associate Planner, and Ruben Gonzalez, Code Enforcement Officer
presented the item. They demonstrated to the board that the structure is unsafe due to
the ability of the public to enter and exit the structure and the broken window in the
front presents a hazard. Furthermore, the structure has been abandoned. Ruben also
discussed that all attempts were made to contact the property owner through certified
mail and publishing of the notice in the Muskogee Phoenix.  

  AYE:  Director of Planning & Community Development Jody King, Interim Chief
Building Inspector Jeff Stirckland 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 11:07 A.M.



The City of Muskogee encourages participation from all its citizens in public meetings. If participation is not possible due to a disability, notify the City
Clerk, in writing, at least forty-eight hours prior to the scheduled meeting and necessary accommodations will be made (ADA 28 CFR/36).

POSTING DATE:  APRIL 3, 2024

AGENDA
PUBLIC NUISANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE

APRIL 4, 2024

Official action can only be taken on items which appear on the agenda. The public body may adopt, approve, ratify, deny, defer, recommend, amend, strike,
or continue any agenda item.

When more information is needed to act on an item, the public body may refer the matter to Staff or back to Committee or the recommending body.

Under certain circumstances, items are deferred to a specific date or stricken from the agenda entirely.

REGULAR SESSION - 11:00 A.M. - CITY HALL, 229 W. OKMULGEE AVE, 3RD FLOOR,
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA

ROLL CALL

1. Approve the minutes of the Public Nuisance Review Committee from Thursday, February 22,
2024, or take other necessary action

2. Hold a Public Hearing to determine if the property located at 210 N. Main Street is
dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public
and the community as to constitute a public nuisance; and/or whether the property creates a
fire hazard which is dangerous to other property; and/or whether the building is abandoned,
and make an appropriate recommendation to the Uniform Building Code of Appeals Board, or
take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112 (C); 11 O.S. 22-112.4).  (Jody King)

ADJOURN



   
Public Nuisance Review Committee 1.        
Meeting Date: 04/04/2024  

AGENDA ITEM TITLE
Approve the minutes of the Public Nuisance Review Committee from Thursday, February 22, 2024, or
take other necessary action

BACKGROUND

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
2/22/2024 PNRC Draft Minutes 



MINUTES

OF THE
PUBLIC NUISANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE
OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA

MET IN A REGULAR CALL SESSION 
IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS OF THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING, MUSKOGEE,

OKLAHOMA
FEBRUARY 22, 2024

 
The Public Nuisance Review Committee of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, met in a Regular
Schedule Meeting at 11:00 a.m., on FEBRUARY 22, 2024, at 229 W. Okmulgee Ave., 3rd Floor,
Council Chambers, Muskogee, Oklahoma.
 

The meeting was called to order by Director of Planning, Jody King, at 11:01 a.m. and the roll was
called as follows:
 

Present:  Jody King, Director of Planning and Community Development; Michael Brackeen,
Code Enforcement Division Head 

Staff Present:  Cathy Sanders, Office Administrator
Kady McKeen, Office Administrator Temp

 

               
1. Consider approval of Minutes: February 8, 2024, or take other necessary action.   
 
  Motion was made by Director of Planning and Community Development Jody King, 

seconded by Code Enforcement Division Head Michael Brackeen to approve the
minutes of February 8, 2024, Public Nuisance Review Committee. Director of
Planning, Jody King, made the motion to approve the amended minutes by striking
item 8.  

  AYE:  Director of Planning and Community Development Jody King, Code
Enforcement Division Head Michael Brackeen 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
2. Hold a Public Hearing to Determine Whether the Boarding and Securing of the Structure   



2. Hold a Public Hearing to Determine Whether the Boarding and Securing of the Structure
Located at 407 W. Broadway Would Promote and Benefit the Public Health, Safety or
Welfare (11 O.S. 22-112.1(3); Ord. No. 3346-A, 10-9-1995).

Director of Planning, Jody King, opened the Public Hearing and discussion followed.

  

 
  Motion was made by Director of Planning and Community Development Jody King, 

seconded by Code Enforcement Division Head Michael Brackeen to table this item
until the March 7, 2024, Public Nuisance Review Committee Meeting in order to
verify property owners' information.  

  AYE:  Director of Planning and Community Development Jody King, Code
Enforcement Division Head Michael Brackeen 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 11:07 by Director of Planning, Jody King.



   
Public Nuisance Review Committee 2.        
Meeting Date: 04/04/2024  

AGENDA ITEM TITLE
Hold a Public Hearing to determine if the property located at 210 N. Main Street is dilapidated and has
become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public and the community as to
constitute a public nuisance; and/or whether the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to
other property; and/or whether the building is abandoned, and make an appropriate recommendation to
the Uniform Building Code of Appeals Board, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112 (C); 11
O.S. 22-112.4).  (Jody King)

BACKGROUND
LEGAL
Part of Lot One (1), in Block Two (2), in the CITY OF MUSKOGEE, according to the official Plat
thereof, Muskogee County, State of Oklahoma, more particularly described as follows; Beginning at a
point on the Westerly Line of said Lot 1, 55 feet Southerly from the Intersection of the Easterly line of
North Main Street with the Southerly line of the 12 foot alley running Easterly and Westerly through
said Block 2; Thence from said point Southerly along the Westerly line of said Lot 1 a distance of 49.62
feet which said point is also 77.93 feet North of the North line of West Broadway; Thence North 89°8'
E a distance of 171 feet to a point in the East line of said Lot, said point is 104.1 feet South of the South
line of the
aforementioned alley and 78.1 feet North of the North line of West Broadway; Thence Northerly along
the • East line of said Lot 1 a distance of 49.1 feet to a point 55 feet South of the South line of said
alley; Thence Westerly in a direct straight line parallel with the South line of the aforementioned alley
171 feet more or less to the Point of Beginning.

An exterior inspection of the property and structure occurred on 3/12/2024 by the City Building
Inspector and the City Fire Marshall.  These are the findings from those inspections: 

The structure has broken windows that need to be replaced. *108.1.5 IPMC
The structure back door is open and not secured and will need to be secured. *108.1.5 IPMC
The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2
IPMC 

Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the
municipality;
Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire
protection costs; and
Devalues abutting and nearby real properties

Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11
Section 22-112(C) and permits and repairs must be made to make this safe and fit for habitation
and occupancy. *108.1.3 IPMC  

Corrective Actions recommended in the letter sent to the property owners are:
Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing
and mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective
International Codes; the exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary and
safe condition. Exterior doors and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in
sound condition, good repair, and weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants



sound condition, good repair, and weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants
within, equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable
of being opened and closed, as intended by the manufacturer. The interior shall be brought into good
repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Stairs, landings, balconies and similar walking
surfaces which are not properly anchored shall be secured. Accumulated rubbish, trash and debris,
including all non-working equipment shall be removed. Any fractures in concrete, masonry, and stucco
shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Hold the hearing, make a determination and recommendation to the Uniform Building Code of Appeals
Board. 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Case File 











 

 

April 5, 2024 

 
210 Main Holdings LLC 

P.O. Box 1867 

Broken Arrow, OK 74013-0000 

Case Number:      24-73361 

Street Address:    210 N Main St 

Legal Description:    See Attached 

  

DETERMINATION OF THE PUBLIC NUISANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE FOR A DILAPIDATED 

STRUCTURE 

 

The property at the aforementioned address was reviewed by the Public Nuisance Review Committee on April 

4, 2024 and determined: 

 

1) Your property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general 

public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or  

2) Your building is abandoned. 

 

You are hereby notified that The City of Muskogee has granted you an automatic appeal to the Uniform 

Building Codes Appeals Board to be heard on May 1, 2024 at 1:30 P.M. The hearing will held at 229 W. 

Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma  74401 to determine whether the 

corrective action has made sufficient progress to no longer be deemed dilapidated or to uphold the findings 

of the Public Nuisance Review Committee as mentioned above. You must attend the hearing or take 

corrective action on your property by May 1, 2024. 

 

If you have any questions regarding this, you may contact the Code Enforcement Department at (918) 684-6235. 

If you wish to have the structure voluntarily abated by the City of Muskogee, a discount demolition program is 

available on a first come, first serves basis. If you are interested in signing up for the program, please contact 

Michael Brackeen, Code Enforcement Supervisor for more information. 

 

Ruben Gonzalez 

Code Enforcement Officer 







 

 

April 5, 2024 

 
RBI Enterprises LLC 

1701 S. Main St 

Broken Arrow, OK 74012-0000 

Case Number:      24-73361 

Street Address:    210 N Main St 

Legal Description:    See Attached 

  

DETERMINATION OF THE PUBLIC NUISANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE FOR A DILAPIDATED 

STRUCTURE 

 

The property at the aforementioned address was reviewed by the Public Nuisance Review Committee on April 

4, 2024 and determined: 

 

1) Your property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general 

public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or  

2) Your building is abandoned. 

 

You are hereby notified that The City of Muskogee has granted you an automatic appeal to the Uniform 

Building Codes Appeals Board to be heard on May 1, 2024 at 1:30 P.M. The hearing will held at 229 W. 

Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma  74401 to determine whether the 

corrective action has made sufficient progress to no longer be deemed dilapidated or to uphold the findings 

of the Public Nuisance Review Committee as mentioned above. You must attend the hearing or take 

corrective action on your property by May 1, 2024. 

 

If you have any questions regarding this, you may contact the Code Enforcement Department at (918) 684-6235. 

If you wish to have the structure voluntarily abated by the City of Muskogee, a discount demolition program is 

available on a first come, first serves basis. If you are interested in signing up for the program, please contact 

Michael Brackeen, Code Enforcement Supervisor for more information. 

 

Ruben Gonzalez 

Code Enforcement Officer 



 







, CODE ENFORCEMENT 

v- :ity of Muskogee 

� 

POST OFFICE BOX 1927 
MUSKOGEE, OK 74402-1927 

0 

I 11 I ;Ill: 
740 

. � �:. • j u1s���-•

-024PM 3 ..,_....,�.� � --
- _ ..... .._. � �r ;�401 s oos.sso

- • 0001367161MAR 15 2024 

7020 181□ □o□a 2s11 3593

N·! XI: 

Rfb� ENTER f'� \�E,'7 LLC., 

l1Dl � MAIN ST 

\t>r2.0KEI\I Afl® VJ . DK 
7-31 DE 1 

------

0003/20/24 � 

RETURN TO' s·e NOE R 
r-NSUl=FtCIENT A.DORE,SS 

UNABLE TO FO].WARO I 

...... 
2ff - Cib1>-;; i '3� 1 ,, _,;;n _ , t•:;::: I 

-::.,1:-· 1· - __ ;__A
l.
. -

' ¼.i-1• .,:r::-::, �· � ::f::I 
I "t"tOL>.1.'!:JL/ 

sc: 74402.1.92727 *0857:-03892-1.5-39 l 
:·'\li1\e:;1i!1 ll !.iltdlt'1fl,µ.\'f::i\\!ffi::\i!\!!\l\i\l, 1.1]{! ·I..-------,-ru, � �.A .. �- - j- -...-:- �-- _ _QI. 

CODE ENFORCEMENT 

City of Muskogee 
r POST OFFICE BOX 1927
MUSKOGEE, OK 7 4402-1927 

C 

2y., OCO 75 �(_p I 

I 11 I Ill 
; .. �:..� US POSTAGE ... PrTNEYBO'NEs

Qt( 740 
.• -� _ �� , R 2024PM�-;;u ' : �f ;i::-;;�.690 0001367161MAR 18 2024

7□20 1810 0000 2511 3623

03{ ieo/iy 

NI XI t: 

Qrbl �NftS"R�tSf:S LL0 

110\ £. }vtA-tN �T 
B�oKe,J A��orJ, O\< 

7:!:l.i. uE .1. "'"':Ii 2 � I .: '+ 

R"i;T,RN T:() S'E.NDER 
INSUFFICIENT ADDRt$5 

uNAB_:: TO f;'ORWARD 

--- ·- -I-A.:-- sc: 1.4402:L92727 *2.2.93--06682-1:8�-�46:•ri-r"1-;1,·1 -t ':::!� �11,u11111�11 •1' 11u1�JJI,i1111111111111, 11 1 1,, 1 11 H 1,, 1, 1• 1 11 • 
� - ---

































































































   
Uniform Building Code Appeals Board Agenda 4.        
Meeting Date: 06/26/2024  
Initiator: Sarah Winkle, Deputy Director of Planning and Community Development

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Hold a public hearing on the appeal of the findings that the structure at 800 S 32nd is dilapidated and has
become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute a public
nuisance, and/or whether the building is abandoned, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112 (C);
11 O.S. 22-112.4). (Jody King)

BACKGROUND:
An exterior inspection of the property and structure occurred on 3/11/2024 by the City Building
Inspector. These are the findings from those inspections: 

The structure has an exposed roof and is open to the elements. *108.1.5 IPMC
The structure has broken windows. *108.1.5 IPMC
The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2
IPMC 

Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the
municipality;
Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire
protection costs; and
Devalues abutting and nearby real properties

Unfit for human habitation as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) and permits
and repairs must be made to make this fit for habitation and occupancy. *108.1.3 IPMC

Corrective Actions recommended in the letter sent to the property owners was:
Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing
and mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective
International Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe
condition. Exterior doors and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound
condition, good repair, and weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants within,
equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being
opened and closed, as intended by the manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair,
structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Stairs, landings, balconies and similar walking surfaces,
which are not properly anchored, shall be secured. Accumulated rubbish, trash and debris, including all
non-working equipment shall be removed. Any fractures in concrete, masonry, stucco shall be repaired.
Pest problems shall be abated.

PNRC was held on May 23, 2024 and the findings were that the building is dilapidated and has become
detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute a public nuisance, and
the building is abandoned.  

RECOMMENDED STAFF ACTION:
Uphold the findings of the PNRC and approve the structure for demolition.

Fiscal Impact



Attachments
Complete Case File 24-73360 







































NOTICE OF DILAPIDATION AND LIEN

STATE OF OKLAHOMA )
)

COUNTY OF MUSKOGEE )

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

That the City of Muskogee, in Muskogee County, State of Oklahoma, pursuant to a finding of the building 
official has determined that the following described dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, 
or welfare of the public and the community or that said property creates a fire hazard to other property, and that 
the condition of the following described property a detriment or a hazard and that the property would be 
benefited by the removal of such conditions and that the municipal governing body may cause the dilapidated 
buildings to be torn down and removed.  Said property being listed on the current tax rolls in the office of the 
County Treasurer as being owned by:

MUSKOGEE GRAND HOTEL LLC and located at 800 S 32ND ST
MUSKOGEE OK 74401

Land ID#: 000085202
Said property being legally described as follows, to-wit:

ELMWOOD PLACE
LOTS 4 & 5 & E179.78 LOT 6 &
E154.4 LOT 7 & E154.09 LOT 8
LESS S20 BLOCK 4
ELMWOOD PLACE
 

And that pursuant to the findings of the municipal officials of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma claims a lien on 
said property for the destruction and removal costs and that such costs are the personal obligation of the property 
owner from and after the date of filing of said notice, according to the laws of the State of Oklahoma.

Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk

CERTIFICATE OF CITY CLERK

I, Tammy L. Tracy, the undersigned, the duly qualified and performing as the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, do 
hereby certify that the above owner has to file a written notice of appeal from the order of the Building Official 
twenty (20) days from the receipt of the Notice/Order letter.  I am required to file this Notice of Dilapidation and 
Lien to be recorded in the office of the County Clerk of Muskogee County for the above property.

WITNESS my hand as City Clerk and the Seal of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, this 
June 18, 2024.

Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk

Gonzalez, Ruben
Code Enforcement Officer

Case Number: 24-00073360





























 

 

June 5, 2024 

 
Michael Soraya  

4220 NW 10th Ofc 8 

Oklahoma City, OK 73132 

Case Number  24-73360 

Street Address  800 S 32nd 

Legal Description  SEE ATTACHED 

  

DETERMINATION OF THE PUBLIC NUISANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE FOR A DILAPIDATED 

STRUCTURE 

 

The property at the aforementioned address was reviewed by the Public Nuisance Review Committee on May 

23rd, 2024 and determined: 

 

1) Your property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general 

public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or  

2)  Your building is abandoned. 

 

You are hereby notified that The City of Muskogee has granted you an automatic appeal to the Uniform 

Building Codes Appeals Board to be heard on June 26th, 2024 at 1:30 P.M. The hearing will held at 229 W. 

Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma  74401 to determine whether the 

corrective action has made sufficient progress to no longer be deemed dilapidated or to uphold the findings 

of the Public Nuisance Review Committee as mentioned above. You must attend the hearing or take 

corrective action on your property by June 26, 2024. 

 

If you have any questions regarding this, you may contact the Code Enforcement Department at (918) 684-6235. 

If you wish to have the structure voluntarily abated by the City of Muskogee, a discount demolition program is 

available on a first come, first serves basis. If you are interested in signing up for the program, please contact 

Ruben Gonzalez, Code Enforcement Supervisor for more information. 

 

Ruben Gonzalez 

Code Enforcement Officer 







 

 

June 5, 2024 

 
Muskogee Grand Hotel LLC 

PO Box 5523 

Edmond, OK 73083 

Case Number  24-73360 

Street Address  800 S 32nd  

Legal Description  SEE ATTACHED 

  

DETERMINATION OF THE PUBLIC NUISANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE FOR A DILAPIDATED 

STRUCTURE 

 

The property at the aforementioned address was reviewed by the Public Nuisance Review Committee on May 

23rd, 2024 and determined: 

 

1) Your property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general 

public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or  

2)  Your building is abandoned. 

 

You are hereby notified that The City of Muskogee has granted you an automatic appeal to the Uniform 

Building Codes Appeals Board to be heard on June 26, 2024 at 1:30 P.M. The hearing will held at 229 W. 

Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma  74401 to determine whether the 

corrective action has made sufficient progress to no longer be deemed dilapidated or to uphold the findings 

of the Public Nuisance Review Committee as mentioned above. You must attend the hearing or take 

corrective action on your property by June 26, 2024. 

 

If you have any questions regarding this, you may contact the Code Enforcement Department at (918) 684-6235. 

If you wish to have the structure voluntarily abated by the City of Muskogee, a discount demolition program is 

available on a first come, first serves basis. If you are interested in signing up for the program, please contact 

Ruben Gonzalez, Code Enforcement Supervisor for more information. 

 

Ruben Gonzalez 

Code Enforcement Officer 





      

The City of Muskogee encourages participation from all its citizens in public meetings. If participation is not possible due to a disability,
notify the City Clerk, in writing, at least forty-eight hours prior to the scheduled meeting and necessary accommodations will be made
(ADA 28 CFR/36).

 
POSTING DATE: May 22, 2024

AGENDA
PUBLIC NUISANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE

MAY 23, 2024

 
Official action can only be taken on items which appear on the agenda. The public body may adopt, approve, ratify, deny, defer,
recommend, amend, strike, or continue any agenda item.
 
When more information is needed to act on an item, the public body may refer the matter to Staff or back to Committee or the
recommending body.
 
Under certain circumstances, items are deferred to a specific date or stricken from the agenda entirely.

 

REGULAR SESSION - 11:00 A.M. - CITY HALL, 229 W. OKMULGEE AVE, 3RD FLOOR, COUNCIL
CHAMBERS, MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA

ROLL CALL

 
       

1.  Consider approval of the Public Nuisance Review Committee minutes for February 22, 2024,
April 4, 2024, and April 18, 2024, or take other necessary action. 

 

2.  Hold a Public Hearing and determine if the property located at 800 S 32nd is abandoned, is dilapidated
and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public and the community as
to constitute a public nuisance; and/or whether the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to
other property; and/or whether the building is abandoned, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-
112(C); 11 O.S. 22-112.4).  (Jody King)

 

ADJOURN



MINUTES

OF THE
PUBLIC NUISANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE
OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA

MET IN A REGULAR CALL SESSION 
IN THE INSPECTIONS BUILDING, MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA

MAY 23, 2024

 
The Public Nuisance Review Committee of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, met in a Regular
Schedule Meeting at 11:00 a.m., on May 23, 2024, at 229 W. Okmulgee Ave., 3rd Floor, Council
Chambers, Muskogee, Oklahoma.
 

The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair Jody King at 11:00 a.m., and the roll was called as
follows:
 

Present: Jody King, Chairman; Ruben Gonzalez, Committee Member; Jeff Strickland, Committee Member
Staff Present: Sarah Winkle, Deputy Director of Planning

Aaron Mayhugh, Fire Marshal
Attendees: Michael Soraya, 800 S. 32nd Street Property Owner

Derrick Reed, Deputy Mayor
Mark Hughes

 

        

1. Consider approval of the Public Nuisance Review Committee minutes for February 22, 2024, April 4,
2024, and April 18, 2024, or take other necessary action.

  

 
 Motion was made by Committee Member Ruben Gonzalez, seconded by Committee Member Jeff

Strickland Public Nuisance Review Committee minutes for February 22, 2024 and April 4, 2024, and
April 18, 2024.

 AYE: Chairman Jody King, Committee Member Ruben Gonzalez, Committee Member Jeff
Strickland

Carried - Unanimously
 

2. Hold a Public Hearing and determine if the property located at 800 S 32nd is abandoned, is dilapidated
and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public and the community as
to constitute a public nuisance; and/or whether the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to
other property; and/or whether the building is abandoned, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-
112(C); 11 O.S. 22-112.4).  (Jody King)

Committee Member Ruben Gonzalez, presented the item and gave background information. 

City of Muskogee Fire Marshal, Arron Mayhugh, spoke of multiple past incidents when responding to
the property.

Michael Soraya gave an update on the status of the property, including:

  



Obtained Permit for painting the front of the property
Pricing contractors for debris removal
Removed all weight from dilapidated roof structure
Electricity removal
Blocking entrance to parkinglot 

Mark Hughes asked the dates of recent inspection, and how the inspector got into the location? He also
asked Committee Member Ruben Gonzalez, to read the Background again.

Deputy Mayor Derrick Reed spoke in support of Mr. Michael Soraya.

Discussion Follows.

Jody King motioned the property should be considered abandoned and will forward this item to the
Appeals Board on June 26, 2024, seconded by Ruben Gonzalez.

 
 

     
 AYE: Chairman Jody King, Committee Member Ruben Gonzalez, Committee Member Jeff

Strickland
Carried - Unanimously

 
 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned.





























 

 

04/23/2024 

 
Michael Soraya 

4220 NW 10th St Ofc. 8 

Oklahoma City, OK 73132 

Case Number: 24-73360 

Street Address: 800 S 32nd 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

 

ORDER TO REPAIR AND/OR TAKE OTHER CORRECTIVE ACTION (CORRECTED) 

The City of Muskogee identifies unlawful violations of the International Property Maintenance Code (“IPMC”), 

as adopted by the City of Muskogee under City Codes §18-184 and §18-185, and further identifies structures that 

have become dilapidated per Oklahoma State Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) or abandoned per Section 22-

112.4. These violations constitute a public nuisance and must be abated. An exterior inspection of the property 

and structure you own at the aforementioned address occurred on 03/11/2024 by the City of Muskogee Building 

Inspector. Below are the findings of the Building Inspector with applicable provisions of the IPMC and/or state 

statute, as well as, corrective action which is hereby ordered to bring the property into compliance with City Code.    
 

FINDINGS BY THE BUILDING INSPECTOR: 

 The structure has an exposed roof and is open to the elements. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure has broken windows. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2 IPMC 

o Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the 

municipality; 

o Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire protection 

costs; and 

o Devalues abutting and nearby real properties 

 Unfit for human habitation as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) and permits and 

repairs must be made to make this fit for habitation and occupancy. *108.1.3 IPMC 

 

CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing and 

mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective International 

Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe condition. Exterior 

doors and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound condition, good repair, and 

weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants within, equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior 

doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being opened and closed, as intended by the 

manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Stairs, 

landings, balconies and similar walking surfaces, which are not properly anchored, shall be secured. Accumulated 

rubbish, trash and debris, including all non-working equipment shall be removed. Any fractures in concrete, 

masonry, stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.  

 

You are hereby directed to appear at a hearing to be held on May 23rd at 11:00 a.m. before the Public 

Nuisance Review Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma 

74401 to determine:  

 

 

 



1) Whether your property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare

of the general public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or

2) If the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property.

3) Whether the building is abandoned as set out above.

Should you fail to appear, action will be taken in your absence, including but not limited to, action to 

approve demolition and removal of the structure.  

If no permit is obtained and corrective action taken by the date of the hearing listed below, or you wish to 

dispute the Order to Repair and/or Take Corrective Action ordered by the Building Inspector, you are 

directed to appear at a hearing to be held on MAY 23, 2024 at 11 a.m. before the Public Nuisance Review 

Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee (3rd Floor), Muskogee, Oklahoma 74401 to determine: 1) whether your 

property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public 

and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, or 2) if the property creates a fire hazard which is 

dangerous to other property, or 3) whether the building is abandoned. Should you fail to appear, action 

will be taken in your absence, including but not limited to, action to approve demolition and removal of 

the structure.  

You have the right to appeal any decision of the Public Nuisance Review Committee to the UBCAB of the City 

of Muskogee by filing written notice to the City Clerk at P.O. Box 1927, Muskogee, Oklahoma 74401 within 10 

days after the decision is rendered.    

ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH DEMOLITION ABATEMENT WILL BE BILLED TO THE PROPERTY 

OWNER AND A LIEN WILL BE IMPOSED ON THE PROPERTY TO SECURE PAYMENT.  

If you have any questions regarding this, you may contact the Code Enforcement Department at (918) 684-6235.  

If you wish to have the structure voluntarily abated by the City of Muskogee, a discount demolition program is 

available on a first come first serve basis.  If you are interested in this program please contact Ruben Gonzalez, 

Code Enforcement Supervisor for more information. 

Ruben Gonzalez 

Code Enforcement Officer 

City of Muskogee 

IPMC References 

*108.1.5 – Dangerous Structure or Premises

*108.2 – Closing of Vacant Structures

*108.1.3 – Structure Unfit for Human Occupancy







 

 

04/23/2024 

 
Muskogee Grand Hotel LLC 

PO Box 5523 

Edmond, OK 73083 

Case Number: 24-73360 

Street Address: 800 S 32nd 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

 

ORDER TO REPAIR AND/OR TAKE OTHER CORRECTIVE ACTION (CORRECTED) 

The City of Muskogee identifies unlawful violations of the International Property Maintenance Code (“IPMC”), 

as adopted by the City of Muskogee under City Codes §18-184 and §18-185, and further identifies structures that 

have become dilapidated per Oklahoma State Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) or abandoned per Section 22-

112.4. These violations constitute a public nuisance and must be abated. An exterior inspection of the property 

and structure you own at the aforementioned address occurred on 03/11/2024 by the City of Muskogee Building 

Inspector. Below are the findings of the Building Inspector with applicable provisions of the IPMC and/or state 

statute, as well as, corrective action which is hereby ordered to bring the property into compliance with City Code.    
 

FINDINGS BY THE BUILDING INSPECTOR: 

 The structure has an exposed roof and is open to the elements. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure has broken windows. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2 IPMC 

o Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the 

municipality; 

o Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire protection 

costs; and 

o Devalues abutting and nearby real properties 

 Unfit for human habitation as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) and permits and 

repairs must be made to make this fit for habitation and occupancy. *108.1.3 IPMC 

 

CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing and 

mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective International 

Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe condition. Exterior 

doors and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound condition, good repair, and 

weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants within, equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior 

doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being opened and closed, as intended by the 

manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Stairs, 

landings, balconies and similar walking surfaces, which are not properly anchored, shall be secured. Accumulated 

rubbish, trash and debris, including all non-working equipment shall be removed. Any fractures in concrete, 

masonry, stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.  

 

You are hereby directed to appear at a hearing to be held on May 23rd at 11:00 a.m. before the Public 

Nuisance Review Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma 

74401 to determine:  

 

 

 



 

 

1) Whether your property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare 

of the general public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or  

2) If the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property.  

3) Whether the building is abandoned as set out above. 

 

Should you fail to appear, action will be taken in your absence, including but not limited to, action to 

approve demolition and removal of the structure.  

 

If no permit is obtained and corrective action taken by the date of the hearing listed below, or you wish to 

dispute the Order to Repair and/or Take Corrective Action ordered by the Building Inspector, you are 

directed to appear at a hearing to be held on MAY 23, 2024 at 11 a.m. before the Public Nuisance Review 

Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee (3rd Floor), Muskogee, Oklahoma 74401 to determine: 1) whether your 

property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public 

and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, or 2) if the property creates a fire hazard which is 

dangerous to other property, or 3) whether the building is abandoned. Should you fail to appear, action 

will be taken in your absence, including but not limited to, action to approve demolition and removal of 

the structure.  

 

You have the right to appeal any decision of the Public Nuisance Review Committee to the UBCAB of the City 

of Muskogee by filing written notice to the City Clerk at P.O. Box 1927, Muskogee, Oklahoma 74401 within 10 

days after the decision is rendered.    

 

ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH DEMOLITION ABATEMENT WILL BE BILLED TO THE PROPERTY 

OWNER AND A LIEN WILL BE IMPOSED ON THE PROPERTY TO SECURE PAYMENT.  

 

If you have any questions regarding this, you may contact the Code Enforcement Department at (918) 684-6235.  

If you wish to have the structure voluntarily abated by the City of Muskogee, a discount demolition program is 

available on a first come first serve basis.  If you are interested in this program please contact Ruben Gonzalez, 

Code Enforcement Supervisor for more information. 

 

Ruben Gonzalez 

Code Enforcement Officer 

City of Muskogee 

 

IPMC References 

*108.1.5 – Dangerous Structure or Premises 

*108.2 – Closing of Vacant Structures 

*108.1.3 – Structure Unfit for Human Occupancy 



































Publl1hed In The 
Muskogee Phoenix 

March 28, 2024 

NOTICE AND 
ORDER TO 
PROPERTY 
OWNERS 

You are hereby noti
fied that the proper• 
ties listed below were 
found unsafe or unfit 
for human occupancy 
at an administrative 

} 
hel!lring held before 
the Building Official. 
Because you have 

I 
failed to bring the 
structure up-to code
within the time period 
provided the structure 

1 is being considered 

I 
for condemnation due 

, to Its dilapidated con
dition. The property 
will be posted.and 
placarded in accor-
dance with Section 

} 108.4 of the 
I lntematlonat Property

I 
Maintenance Code
adopted by the City of 
�uskogee. 

A hearing shall be 
held by the Public 

r Nuisance Review 
I Committee to deter-
\ mine if the property is

dilapidated and has 
become detrimental 
to the health, safety, 

I or welfare of the gen
eral public and the 
community, or If the 
property creates a fire 
hazard which is dan
gerous to other prop
erty. 

You are hereby 
ordered to appear at 
said hearing In front 
of the City of 
Muskogee Public 
Nuisance Review 
Committee on the: 
18th day of April, 
2024 at 11 :OOAM In 
the City Council 
Chambers on the 
lhlrd floor of the 
City �all at 229 Weat 
Okmulgee. You 
have the right to 
appear at the sched
uled hearing and 
present evldtnca 
related to th4t above 

. listed property. If 
you fall to appear, a 
decision will be 
made In your 
absence and a 
dilapidation Hen 
could be flied on 
your property. 
Failure to appear and 
be heard may also 
result in a citation 
being filed against 
you through the 
Municipal Court ol the 
City of Muskogee, 
Oklahoma 

Should you fall to 

I Appear, the City of 
Muskogee may pro
ceed with the demoli· 
tlon of the structure. 
If the City or its 
agents perform the 
demolition, you wlll be 
billed for these costs. 
Failure to pay within 
six (6) months of the 
statement will result 
in the costs being 
assessed as an ad 
valorem tax on the 
property. Payment of 

1 demolition costs also 
becOmes the personal 
obligation of the prop
erty owner and may 
be collected in accor
dance with any other 
cMI rem�y provided 
by law. 

11 you have any ques· 
lions regarding this 
order, you may con
tact the City ol 
Muskogee Code 
Enforcement 
Department at (918) 
684-6235. 

800832ND, 
MUSKOGEE, OK 

Exhibit "A" 
PROPERTY 

DESCRIPTION 

Lots 4 and s in Block 
4·of ELMWOOD 
PLACE ADDITION to 
the City of Muskogee, 
according to the offl• 
clal plat thereof, 
Muskogee County, 
Oklahoma, more par• 
ticularly described as 
follows: 

AND 

A piece or parcel of 
land located in Lots 6, 
7, and 8 of Block 4 in 
ELMWOOD PLACE 
ADDITION 'to the City 
Of Muskogee, accord· 
Ing to the official plat 
thereof, Muskogee 
County, Oklahoma, 
more particularly 

• point being 153.97
feet westerly of the
southeast comer of
said Lot 6; \hence
westerly along the
south line of Lot 6 for 
a distance of 25.0 

\ feet; thence northerly
along the easterly
right of way of U. S. 

I 
Highway No:'89 for a
distance of 105.00

\ 

feet to a point on the
north·line of said Lot
8; thence easterly
along .the north line ol
Lot 8 for a distance of
179.04 feet to tt1e
northeast come( of
sakl Lot 6; thence
southerly along the

I 
east line of Lots 8, 7
and 8 for a distance
of 295.0 feet to the

I 
point of beginning. 

\
AND 

I described as follows: 
\ 

Beginning at a point 

A piece or parcel of 
land localed In Lots 9, 
10, and 11 of ELM 
RIDGE ACRES ADDI· 
TION to the City of 
Muskogee, according 
'° the official plat
thereof, Muskogee 
County; OklahOma, 
more particularly 
described as follows: 

on the east lillf of Lot 
\ 8, 20.0 feet northerly 

of the southeast cor-
ner of said Lot 8; 

1 thence westerly paral- \ • lel with the south line
of Lot 8 for a distance 11 
of 153.84 feetto a 
point in the easterly 
right of way line ot U. 
s. Highway No. 89; • 
thence northerly 
along the east right of 
way line of U. S. high· 
way Highway No. 89 
for a distance of 
190.0 feet to a point 
on the south line of 
Lot 6, said 

_) 

i:segmmng at ,me 
southwest comer of 
Lot 11; thence 
northerly along 
the wast line of Lota 

,9, 10 and 11 for a dis
tance of 445.0 feet to 
a point, said point 
!>Bing 31.0 feet 
northerly Of the south· 
west comer of said 
Lot 9; thence easterly 
parallel with the south
line of Lot 9 for a dis
tance of 122.0 feet; 
thence southerly par·· 
allel with the west llne 
of Lots 9 and 10 for a 
distance of 238.0 feet 
to a point on the north 
line of Lot 11, said 

I • point being 122.0 feet 
J easterly ol the north• 

west comer of said 
Lot 11; thence easter
ly along the north line 
of Lot 11 for a dis• 
tance of 78.0 feet; 
thence southerly, par
allel with the west 
line of Lot 11 for a 
distance of 207.00 
feet to a point on the 
south tine of Lot 11, 
said point being 200.0 

I . feet easterly of the
southwest comer of 
Lot 11; thence wester
ly along the south line 
of Lot 11 for a dis· 
lance of 200.0 feet to 
the point of begin-

I 
nlng. 

I AND 

! The west 78 feet of
the east 228 feet of 
Lot 1 o and the west

I 200 feet of the south
I 100feetof Lot9tess
1 the south 31 feet of 
1 the west 122 feet
1 thereof In ELM

RIDGE ACRES ADDI· 
TION to the City of 
Muskogee, according 
to the official plat 
thereof, Muskogee 
County, Oklahoma. 

_) 























 

 

03/25/2024 

 
Muskogee Grand Hotel LLC 

PO Box 5523 

Edmond, OK 73083 

Case Number: 24-73360 

Street Address: 800 S 32nd 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

 

ORDER TO REPAIR AND/OR TAKE OTHER CORRECTIVE ACTION (CORRECTED) 

The City of Muskogee identifies unlawful violations of the International Property Maintenance Code (“IPMC”), 

as adopted by the City of Muskogee under City Codes §18-184 and §18-185, and further identifies structures that 

have become dilapidated per Oklahoma State Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) or abandoned per Section 22-

112.4. These violations constitute a public nuisance and must be abated. An exterior inspection of the property 

and structure you own at the aforementioned address occurred on 03/11/2024 by the City of Muskogee Building 

Inspector. Below are the findings of the Building Inspector with applicable provisions of the IPMC and/or state 

statute, as well as, corrective action which is hereby ordered to bring the property into compliance with City Code.    
 

FINDINGS BY THE BUILDING INSPECTOR: 

 The structure has an exposed roof and is open to the elements. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure has broken windows. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2 IPMC 

o Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the 

municipality; 

o Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire protection 

costs; and 

o Devalues abutting and nearby real properties 

 Unfit for human habitation as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) and permits and 

repairs must be made to make this fit for habitation and occupancy. *108.1.3 IPMC 

 

CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing and 

mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective International 

Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe condition. Exterior 

doors and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound condition, good repair, and 

weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants within, equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior 

doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being opened and closed, as intended by the 

manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Stairs, 

landings, balconies and similar walking surfaces, which are not properly anchored, shall be secured. Accumulated 

rubbish, trash and debris, including all non-working equipment shall be removed. Any fractures in concrete, 

masonry, stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.  

 

You are hereby directed to appear at a hearing to be held on April 18th at 11:00 a.m. before the Public 

Nuisance Review Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma 

74401 to determine:  

 

 

 









03/25/2024 

Michael Soraya 

4220 NW 10th St Ofc. 8 

Oklahoma City, OK 73132 

Case Number: 24-73360 

Street Address: 800 S 32nd 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

ORDER TO REPAIR AND/OR TAKE OTHER CORRECTIVE ACTION (CORRECTED) 

The City of Muskogee identifies unlawful violations of the International Property Maintenance Code (“IPMC”), 

as adopted by the City of Muskogee under City Codes §18-184 and §18-185, and further identifies structures that 

have become dilapidated per Oklahoma State Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) or abandoned per Section 22-

112.4. These violations constitute a public nuisance and must be abated. An exterior inspection of the property 

and structure you own at the aforementioned address occurred on 03/11/2024 by the City of Muskogee Building 

Inspector. Below are the findings of the Building Inspector with applicable provisions of the IPMC and/or state 

statute, as well as, corrective action which is hereby ordered to bring the property into compliance with City Code. 

FINDINGS BY THE BUILDING INSPECTOR: 

 The structure has an exposed roof and is open to the elements. *108.1.5 IPMC

 The structure has broken windows. *108.1.5 IPMC

 The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2 IPMC

o Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the

municipality;

o Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire protection

costs; and

o Devalues abutting and nearby real properties

 Unfit for human habitation as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) and permits and

repairs must be made to make this fit for habitation and occupancy. *108.1.3 IPMC

CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing and 

mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective International 

Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe condition. Exterior 

doors and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound condition, good repair, and 

weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants within, equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior 

doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being opened and closed, as intended by the 

manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Stairs, 

landings, balconies and similar walking surfaces, which are not properly anchored, shall be secured. Accumulated 

rubbish, trash and debris, including all non-working equipment shall be removed. Any fractures in concrete, 

masonry, stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.  

You are hereby directed to appear at a hearing to be held on April 18th at 11:00 a.m. before the Public 

Nuisance Review Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma 

74401 to determine: 









 

 

03/18/2024 

 
Muskogee Grand Hotel LLC 

PO Box 5523 

Edmond, OK 73083 

Case Number: 24-73360 

Street Address: 800 S 32nd 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

 

ORDER TO REPAIR AND/OR TAKE OTHER CORRECTIVE ACTION (CORRECTED) 

The City of Muskogee identifies unlawful violations of the International Property Maintenance Code (“IPMC”), 

as adopted by the City of Muskogee under City Codes §18-184 and §18-185, and further identifies structures that 

have become dilapidated per Oklahoma State Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) or abandoned per Section 22-

112.4. These violations constitute a public nuisance and must be abated. An exterior inspection of the property 

and structure you own at the aforementioned address occurred on 03/11/2024 by the City of Muskogee Building 

Inspector. Below are the findings of the Building Inspector with applicable provisions of the IPMC and/or state 

statute, as well as, corrective action which is hereby ordered to bring the property into compliance with City Code.    
 

FINDINGS BY THE BUILDING INSPECTOR: 

 The structure has an exposed roof and is open to the elements. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure has broken windows. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2 IPMC 

o Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the 

municipality; 

o Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire protection 

costs; and 

o Devalues abutting and nearby real properties 

 Unfit for human habitation as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) and permits and 

repairs must be made to make this fit for habitation and occupancy. *108.1.3 IPMC 

 

CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing and 

mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective International 

Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe condition. Exterior 

doors and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound condition, good repair, and 

weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants within, equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior 

doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being opened and closed, as intended by the 

manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Stairs, 

landings, balconies and similar walking surfaces, which are not properly anchored, shall be secured. Accumulated 

rubbish, trash and debris, including all non-working equipment shall be removed. Any fractures in concrete, 

masonry, stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.  

 

You are hereby directed to appear at a hearing to be held on April 18th at 11:00 a.m. before the Public 

Nuisance Review Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma 

74401 to determine:  

 

 

 









 

 

03/18/2024 

 
Michael Soraya 

4220 NW 10th St Ofc. 8 

Oklahoma City, OK 73132 

Case Number: 24-73360 

Street Address: 800 S 32nd 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

 

ORDER TO REPAIR AND/OR TAKE OTHER CORRECTIVE ACTION (CORRECTED) 

The City of Muskogee identifies unlawful violations of the International Property Maintenance Code (“IPMC”), 

as adopted by the City of Muskogee under City Codes §18-184 and §18-185, and further identifies structures that 

have become dilapidated per Oklahoma State Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) or abandoned per Section 22-

112.4. These violations constitute a public nuisance and must be abated. An exterior inspection of the property 

and structure you own at the aforementioned address occurred on 03/11/2024 by the City of Muskogee Building 

Inspector. Below are the findings of the Building Inspector with applicable provisions of the IPMC and/or state 

statute, as well as, corrective action which is hereby ordered to bring the property into compliance with City Code.    
 

FINDINGS BY THE BUILDING INSPECTOR: 

 The structure has an exposed roof and is open to the elements. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure has broken windows. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2 IPMC 

o Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the 

municipality; 

o Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire protection 

costs; and 

o Devalues abutting and nearby real properties 

 Unfit for human habitation as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) and permits and 

repairs must be made to make this fit for habitation and occupancy. *108.1.3 IPMC 

 

CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing and 

mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective International 

Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe condition. Exterior 

doors and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound condition, good repair, and 

weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants within, equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior 

doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being opened and closed, as intended by the 

manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Stairs, 

landings, balconies and similar walking surfaces, which are not properly anchored, shall be secured. Accumulated 

rubbish, trash and debris, including all non-working equipment shall be removed. Any fractures in concrete, 

masonry, stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.  

 

You are hereby directed to appear at a hearing to be held on April 18th at 11:00 a.m. before the Public 

Nuisance Review Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma 

74401 to determine:  

 

 

 









 

 

03/14/2024 

 
Muskogee Grand Hotel LLC 

PO Box 5523 

Edmond, OK 73083 

Case Number: 24-73360 

Street Address: 800 S 32nd 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

 

ORDER TO REPAIR AND/OR TAKE OTHER CORRECTIVE ACTION (CORRECTED) 

The City of Muskogee identifies unlawful violations of the International Property Maintenance Code (“IPMC”), 

as adopted by the City of Muskogee under City Codes §18-184 and §18-185, and further identifies structures that 

have become dilapidated per Oklahoma State Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) or abandoned per Section 22-

112.4. These violations constitute a public nuisance and must be abated. An exterior inspection of the property 

and structure you own at the aforementioned address occurred on 03/11/2024 by the City of Muskogee Building 

Inspector. Below are the findings of the Building Inspector with applicable provisions of the IPMC and/or state 

statute, as well as, corrective action which is hereby ordered to bring the property into compliance with City Code.    
 

FINDINGS BY THE BUILDING INSPECTOR: 

 The structure has an exposed roof and is open to the elements. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure has broken windows. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2 IPMC 

o Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the 

municipality; 

o Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire protection 

costs; and 

o Devalues abutting and nearby real properties 

 Unfit for human habitation as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) and permits and 

repairs must be made to make this fit for habitation and occupancy. *108.1.3 IPMC 

 

CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing and 

mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective International 

Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe condition. Exterior 

doors and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound condition, good repair, and 

weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants within, equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior 

doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being opened and closed, as intended by the 

manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Stairs, 

landings, balconies and similar walking surfaces, which are not properly anchored, shall be secured. Accumulated 

rubbish, trash and debris, including all non-working equipment shall be removed. Any fractures in concrete, 

masonry, stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.  

 

You are hereby directed to appear at a hearing to be held on April 18th at 11:00 a.m. before the Public 

Nuisance Review Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma 

74401 to determine:  

 

 

 









03/14/2024 

Michael Soraya 

4220 NW 10th St Ofc. 8 

Oklahoma City, OK 73132 

Case Number: 24-73360 

Street Address: 800 S 32nd 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

ORDER TO REPAIR AND/OR TAKE OTHER CORRECTIVE ACTION (CORRECTED) 

The City of Muskogee identifies unlawful violations of the International Property Maintenance Code (“IPMC”), 

as adopted by the City of Muskogee under City Codes §18-184 and §18-185, and further identifies structures that 

have become dilapidated per Oklahoma State Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) or abandoned per Section 22-

112.4. These violations constitute a public nuisance and must be abated. An exterior inspection of the property 

and structure you own at the aforementioned address occurred on 03/11/2024 by the City of Muskogee Building 

Inspector. Below are the findings of the Building Inspector with applicable provisions of the IPMC and/or state 

statute, as well as, corrective action which is hereby ordered to bring the property into compliance with City Code. 

FINDINGS BY THE BUILDING INSPECTOR: 

 The structure has an exposed roof and is open to the elements. *108.1.5 IPMC

 The structure has broken windows. *108.1.5 IPMC

 The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2 IPMC

o Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the

municipality;

o Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire protection

costs; and

o Devalues abutting and nearby real properties

 Unfit for human habitation as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) and permits and

repairs must be made to make this fit for habitation and occupancy. *108.1.3 IPMC

CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing and 

mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective International 

Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe condition. Exterior 

doors and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound condition, good repair, and 

weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants within, equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior 

doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being opened and closed, as intended by the 

manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Stairs, 

landings, balconies and similar walking surfaces, which are not properly anchored, shall be secured. Accumulated 

rubbish, trash and debris, including all non-working equipment shall be removed. Any fractures in concrete, 

masonry, stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.  

You are hereby directed to appear at a hearing to be held on April 18th at 11:00 a.m. before the Public 

Nuisance Review Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma 

74401 to determine: 



































































   
Uniform Building Code Appeals Board Agenda 5.        
Meeting Date: 06/26/2024  
Initiator: Sarah Winkle, Deputy Director of Planning and Community Development

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Hold a public hearing on the appeal of the findings that the structure at 316 N Main is dilapidated and has
become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute a public
nuisance, and that the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property; and that the
building is abandoned, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112 (C); 11 O.S. 22-112.4). (Jody King)
 

BACKGROUND:
An exterior inspection of the property and structure occurred on 5/13/2024 by the City Building
Inspector. These are the findings from those inspections: 

The structure has broken windows that need to be replaced. *108.1.5 IPMC
The structure is unsecure. *108.1.5 IPMC
The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2
IPMC 

Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the
municipality;
Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire
protection costs; and
Devalues abutting and nearby real properties

Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section
22-112(C) and permits and repairs must be made to make this safe and fit for habitation and
occupancy. *108.1.3 IPMC
The structure has an exposed roof.  *108.1.5
The structure is open to the elements.  *108.1.5

Corrective Actions recommended in the letter sent to the property owners were:
Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing
and mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective
International Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe
condition. Exterior doors and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound
condition, good repair, and weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants within,
equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being
opened and closed, as intended by the manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair,
structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Stairs, landings, balconies and similar walking surfaces,
which are not properly anchored, shall be secured. Accumulated rubbish, trash and debris, including all
non-working equipment shall be removed. Any fractures in concrete, masonry, stucco shall be repaired.
Pest problems shall be abated.

PNRC was held on June 6, 2024 and the findings were that the building is dilapidated and has become
detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute a public nuisance, and
that the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property; and that the building is
abandoned.
 



RECOMMENDED STAFF ACTION:
Uphold the findings of the PNRC and approve the structure for demolition.
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Complete Case File 24-73542 





























NOTICE OF DILAPIDATION AND LIEN

STATE OF OKLAHOMA )
)

COUNTY OF MUSKOGEE )

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

That the City of Muskogee, in Muskogee County, State of Oklahoma, pursuant to a finding of the building 
official has determined that the following described dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, 
or welfare of the public and the community or that said property creates a fire hazard to other property, and that 
the condition of the following described property a detriment or a hazard and that the property would be 
benefited by the removal of such conditions and that the municipal governing body may cause the dilapidated 
buildings to be torn down and removed.  Said property being listed on the current tax rolls in the office of the 
County Treasurer as being owned by:

LLC GROWERS ESSENTIALS and located at 316 N MAIN ST
MUSKOGEE OK 74401

Land ID#: 000061482
Said property being legally described as follows, to-wit:

MUSKOGEE OT
MUSKOGEE OT
S20 LOT 7 & ALL LOT 8 & N75
LOT 9 BLOCK 15
 
 

And that pursuant to the findings of the municipal officials of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma claims a lien on 
said property for the destruction and removal costs and that such costs are the personal obligation of the property 
owner from and after the date of filing of said notice, according to the laws of the State of Oklahoma.

Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk

CERTIFICATE OF CITY CLERK

I, Tammy L. Tracy, the undersigned, the duly qualified and performing as the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, do 
hereby certify that the above owner has to file a written notice of appeal from the order of the Building Official 
twenty (20) days from the receipt of the Notice/Order letter.  I am required to file this Notice of Dilapidation and 
Lien to be recorded in the office of the County Clerk of Muskogee County for the above property.

WITNESS my hand as City Clerk and the Seal of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, this 
June 18, 2024.

Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk

Gonzalez, Ruben
Code Enforcement Officer

Case Number: 24-00073542



















 

 

6/6/2024 

 
Growers Essentials, LLC 

701 Corsica Court 

Argyle, TX 76226 

Case Number: 24-73542 

Street Address: 316 N Main St 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

 

  

DETERMINATION OF THE PUBLIC NUISANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE FOR A DILAPIDATED 

STRUCTURE 

 

The property at the aforementioned address was reviewed by the Public Nuisance Review Committee on June 6, 

2024 and determined: 

 

1) Your property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general 

public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or  

2) The property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property.  

3) The building is abandoned as set out above. 

 

 

You are hereby notified that The City of Muskogee has granted you an automatic appeal to the Uniform 

Building Codes Appeals Board to be heard on June 26, 2024 at 1:30 P.M. The hearing will held at 229 W. 

Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma  74401 to determine whether the 

corrective action has made sufficient progress to no longer be deemed dilapidated or to uphold the findings 

of the Public Nuisance Review Committee as mentioned above. You must attend the hearing or take 

corrective action on your property by June 26, 2024. 

 

If you have any questions regarding this, you may contact the Code Enforcement Department at (918) 684-6235. 

If you wish to have the structure voluntarily abated by the City of Muskogee, a discount demolition program is 

available on a first come, first serves basis. If you are interested in signing up for the program, please contact 

Ruben Gonzalez, Code Enforcement Supervisor for more information. 

 

Ruben Gonzalez 

Code Enforcement Supervisor 



Lots 6, 7, 8, and the North 75 feet of Lot 9, all in Block 15 in the CITY OF MUSKOGEE, County of 

Muskogee, State of Oklahoma, according to the official plat thereof approved by the Secretary 

of the Interior June 4th, 1900, LESS and EXCEPT a portion of Lot 6 in Block 15 of the CITY OF 

MUSKOGEE, State of Oklahoma, more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at the Northwest Corner of Lot 6 in Block 15 in the CITY OF MUSKOGEE, County of 

Muskogee, State of Oklahoma, according to the official plat thereof approved by the Secretary 

of the Interior June the 4th, 1900; thence Southerly along the West line of said Lot 6 a distance 

of 61 feet; thence Easterly to a point on the East line of said Lot 6 to a point on the said East 

line, said point being 62 feet South of the Northeast Corner of said Lot 6; thence Northerly 

along said East line a distance of 62 feet to the Northeast Corner of said Lot 6; thence Westerly 

along the North line of said Lot 6 to the Point of Beginning. 





 

 

6/6/2024 

 
Larryn Workman 

5808 Mistletoe Ct 

Oklahoma City, OK 73142 

Case Number: 24-73542 

Street Address: 316 N Main St 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

 

  

DETERMINATION OF THE PUBLIC NUISANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE FOR A DILAPIDATED 

STRUCTURE 

 

The property at the aforementioned address was reviewed by the Public Nuisance Review Committee on June 6, 

2024 and determined: 

 

1) Your property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general 

public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or  

2) The property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property. (pick one or both) 

3) The building is abandoned as set out above. 

 

 

You are hereby notified that The City of Muskogee has granted you an automatic appeal to the Uniform 

Building Codes Appeals Board to be heard on June 26, 2024 at 1:30 P.M. The hearing will held at 229 W. 

Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma  74401 to determine whether the 

corrective action has made sufficient progress to no longer be deemed dilapidated or to uphold the findings 

of the Public Nuisance Review Committee as mentioned above. You must attend the hearing or take 

corrective action on your property by June 26, 2024. 

 

If you have any questions regarding this, you may contact the Code Enforcement Department at (918) 684-6235. 

If you wish to have the structure voluntarily abated by the City of Muskogee, a discount demolition program is 

available on a first come, first serves basis. If you are interested in signing up for the program, please contact 

Ruben Gonzalez, Code Enforcement Supervisor for more information. 

 

Ruben Gonzalez 

Code Enforcement Supervisor 



Lots 6, 7, 8, and the North 75 feet of Lot 9, all in Block 15 in the CITY OF MUSKOGEE, County of 

Muskogee, State of Oklahoma, according to the official plat thereof approved by the Secretary 

of the Interior June 4th, 1900, LESS and EXCEPT a portion of Lot 6 in Block 15 of the CITY OF 

MUSKOGEE, State of Oklahoma, more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at the Northwest Corner of Lot 6 in Block 15 in the CITY OF MUSKOGEE, County of 

Muskogee, State of Oklahoma, according to the official plat thereof approved by the Secretary 

of the Interior June the 4th, 1900; thence Southerly along the West line of said Lot 6 a distance 

of 61 feet; thence Easterly to a point on the East line of said Lot 6 to a point on the said East 

line, said point being 62 feet South of the Northeast Corner of said Lot 6; thence Northerly 

along said East line a distance of 62 feet to the Northeast Corner of said Lot 6; thence Westerly 

along the North line of said Lot 6 to the Point of Beginning. 





























 

 

May 14, 2024 

 
Larryn Workman 

5808 Mistletoe Ct 

Oklahoma City, OK 73142 

Case Number: 24-73542 

Street Address: 316 N Main St 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

 

ORDER TO REPAIR AND/OR TAKE OTHER CORRECTIVE ACTION 

The City of Muskogee identifies unlawful violations of the International Property Maintenance Code (“IPMC”), 

as adopted by the City of Muskogee under City Codes §18-184 and §18-185, and further identifies structures that 

have become dilapidated per Oklahoma State Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) or abandoned per Section 22-

112.4. These violations constitute a public nuisance and must be abated. An exterior inspection of the property 

and structure you own at the aforementioned address occurred on May 13, 2024 by the City of Muskogee Building 

Inspector. Below are the findings of the Building Inspector with applicable provisions of the IPMC and/or state 

statute, as well as, corrective action which is hereby ordered to bring the property into compliance with City Code.    
 

FINDINGS BY THE BUILDING INSPECTOR: 

 The structure has broken windows that need to be replaced. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is unsecure. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2 IPMC 

o Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the 

municipality; 

o Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire protection 

costs; and 

o Devalues abutting and nearby real properties 

 Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-

112(C) and permits and repairs must be made to make this safe and fit for habitation and occupancy. 

*108.1.3 IPMC 

 The structure has an exposed roof.  *108.1.5 

 The structure is open to the elements.  *108.1.5 

 

 

CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing and 

mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective International 

Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe condition. Exterior 

doors and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound condition, good repair, and 

weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants within, equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior 

doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being opened and closed, as intended by the 

manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Stairs, 

landings, balconies and similar walking surfaces, which are not properly anchored, shall be secured. Accumulated 

rubbish, trash and debris, including all non-working equipment shall be removed. Any fractures in concrete, 

masonry, stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.  

 



 

 

You are hereby directed to appear at a hearing to be held on June 6th at 11:00 a.m. before the Public 

Nuisance Review Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma 

74401 to determine: 

 

1) Whether your property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare 

of the general public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or  

2) If the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property.  

3) Whether the building is abandoned as set out above. 

 

Should you fail to appear, action will be taken in your absence, including but not limited to, action to 

approve demolition and removal of the structure.  

 

If no permit is obtained and corrective action taken by the date of the hearing listed below, or you wish to 

dispute the Order to Repair and/or Take Corrective Action ordered by the Building Inspector, you are 

directed to appear at a hearing to be held on June 6th, 2024 at 11 a.m. before the Public Nuisance Review 

Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee (3rd Floor), Muskogee, Oklahoma 74401 to determine: 1) whether your 

property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public 

and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, or 2) if the property creates a fire hazard which is 

dangerous to other property, or 3) whether the building is abandoned. Should you fail to appear, action 

will be taken in your absence, including but not limited to, action to approve demolition and removal of 

the structure.  

You have the right to appeal any decision of the Public Nuisance Review Committee to the UBCAB of the City 

of Muskogee by filing written notice to the City Clerk at P.O. Box 1927, Muskogee, Oklahoma 74401 within 10 

days after the decision is rendered.    

ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH DEMOLITION ABATEMENT WILL BE BILLED TO THE PROPERTY 

OWNER AND A LIEN WILL BE IMPOSED ON THE PROPERTY TO SECURE PAYMENT.  

If you have any questions regarding this, you may contact the Code Enforcement Department at (918) 684-6235.  

If you wish to have the structure voluntarily abated by the City of Muskogee, a discount demolition program is 

available on a first come first serve basis.  If you are interested in this program please contact Ruben Gonzalez, 

Code Enforcement Supervisor for more information. 

 

Ruben Gonzalez 

Code Enforcement Officer 

City of Muskogee 

 

IPMC References 

*108.1.5 – Dangerous Structure or Premises 

*108.2 – Closing of Vacant Structures 

*108.1.3 – Structure Unfit for Human Occupancy 

*108.1.1- Unsafe Structure 



Lots 6, 7, 8, and the North 75 feet of Lot 9, all in Block 15 in the CITY OF MUSKOGEE, County of 

Muskogee, State of Oklahoma, according to the official plat thereof approved by the Secretary 

of the Interior June 4th, 1900, LESS and EXCEPT a portion of Lot 6 in Block 15 of the CITY OF 

MUSKOGEE, State of Oklahoma, more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at the Northwest Corner of Lot 6 in Block 15 in the CITY OF MUSKOGEE, County of 

Muskogee, State of Oklahoma, according to the official plat thereof approved by the Secretary 

of the Interior June the 4th, 1900; thence Southerly along the West line of said Lot 6 a distance 

of 61 feet; thence Easterly to a point on the East line of said Lot 6 to a point on the said East 

line, said point being 62 feet South of the Northeast Corner of said Lot 6; thence Northerly 

along said East line a distance of 62 feet to the Northeast Corner of said Lot 6; thence Westerly 

along the North line of said Lot 6 to the Point of Beginning. 





 

 

May 14, 2024 

 
Growers Essentials, LLC 

701 Corsica Court 

Argyle, TX 76226 

Case Number: 24-73542 

Street Address: 316 N Main St 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

 

ORDER TO REPAIR AND/OR TAKE OTHER CORRECTIVE ACTION 

The City of Muskogee identifies unlawful violations of the International Property Maintenance Code (“IPMC”), 

as adopted by the City of Muskogee under City Codes §18-184 and §18-185, and further identifies structures that 

have become dilapidated per Oklahoma State Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) or abandoned per Section 22-

112.4. These violations constitute a public nuisance and must be abated. An exterior inspection of the property 

and structure you own at the aforementioned address occurred on May 13, 2024 by the City of Muskogee Building 

Inspector. Below are the findings of the Building Inspector with applicable provisions of the IPMC and/or state 

statute, as well as, corrective action which is hereby ordered to bring the property into compliance with City Code.    
 

FINDINGS BY THE BUILDING INSPECTOR: 

 The structure has broken windows that need to be replaced. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is unsecure. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2 IPMC 

o Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the 

municipality; 

o Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire protection 

costs; and 

o Devalues abutting and nearby real properties 

 Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-

112(C) and permits and repairs must be made to make this safe and fit for habitation and occupancy. 

*108.1.3 IPMC 

 The structure has an exposed roof.  *108.1.5 

 The structure is open to the elements.  *108.1.5 

 

 

CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing and 

mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective International 

Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe condition. Exterior 

doors and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound condition, good repair, and 

weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants within, equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior 

doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being opened and closed, as intended by the 

manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Stairs, 

landings, balconies and similar walking surfaces, which are not properly anchored, shall be secured. Accumulated 

rubbish, trash and debris, including all non-working equipment shall be removed. Any fractures in concrete, 

masonry, stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.  

 



 

 

You are hereby directed to appear at a hearing to be held on June 6th at 11:00 a.m. before the Public 

Nuisance Review Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma 

74401 to determine: 

 

1) Whether your property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare 

of the general public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or  

2) If the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property.  

3) Whether the building is abandoned as set out above. 

 

Should you fail to appear, action will be taken in your absence, including but not limited to, action to 

approve demolition and removal of the structure.  

 

If no permit is obtained and corrective action taken by the date of the hearing listed below, or you wish to 

dispute the Order to Repair and/or Take Corrective Action ordered by the Building Inspector, you are 

directed to appear at a hearing to be held on June 6th, 2024 at 11 a.m. before the Public Nuisance Review 

Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee (3rd Floor), Muskogee, Oklahoma 74401 to determine: 1) whether your 

property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public 

and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, or 2) if the property creates a fire hazard which is 

dangerous to other property, or 3) whether the building is abandoned. Should you fail to appear, action 

will be taken in your absence, including but not limited to, action to approve demolition and removal of 

the structure.  

You have the right to appeal any decision of the Public Nuisance Review Committee to the UBCAB of the City 

of Muskogee by filing written notice to the City Clerk at P.O. Box 1927, Muskogee, Oklahoma 74401 within 10 

days after the decision is rendered.    

ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH DEMOLITION ABATEMENT WILL BE BILLED TO THE PROPERTY 

OWNER AND A LIEN WILL BE IMPOSED ON THE PROPERTY TO SECURE PAYMENT.  

If you have any questions regarding this, you may contact the Code Enforcement Department at (918) 684-6235.  

If you wish to have the structure voluntarily abated by the City of Muskogee, a discount demolition program is 

available on a first come first serve basis.  If you are interested in this program please contact Ruben Gonzalez, 

Code Enforcement Supervisor for more information. 

 

Ruben Gonzalez 

Code Enforcement Officer 

City of Muskogee 

 

IPMC References 

*108.1.5 – Dangerous Structure or Premises 

*108.2 – Closing of Vacant Structures 

*108.1.3 – Structure Unfit for Human Occupancy 

*108.1.1- Unsafe Structure 



Lots 6, 7, 8, and the North 75 feet of Lot 9, all in Block 15 in the CITY OF MUSKOGEE, County of 

Muskogee, State of Oklahoma, according to the official plat thereof approved by the Secretary 

of the Interior June 4th, 1900, LESS and EXCEPT a portion of Lot 6 in Block 15 of the CITY OF 

MUSKOGEE, State of Oklahoma, more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at the Northwest Corner of Lot 6 in Block 15 in the CITY OF MUSKOGEE, County of 

Muskogee, State of Oklahoma, according to the official plat thereof approved by the Secretary 

of the Interior June the 4th, 1900; thence Southerly along the West line of said Lot 6 a distance 

of 61 feet; thence Easterly to a point on the East line of said Lot 6 to a point on the said East 

line, said point being 62 feet South of the Northeast Corner of said Lot 6; thence Northerly 

along said East line a distance of 62 feet to the Northeast Corner of said Lot 6; thence Westerly 

along the North line of said Lot 6 to the Point of Beginning. 





Lots 6, 7, 8, and the North 75 feet of Lot 9, all in Block 15 in the CITY OF MUSKOGEE, County of 

Muskogee, State of Oklahoma, according to the official plat thereof approved by the Secretary 

of the Interior June 4th, 1900, LESS and EXCEPT a portion of Lot 6 in Block 15 of the CITY OF 

MUSKOGEE, State of Oklahoma, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Northwest Corner of Lot 6 in Block 15 in the CITY OF MUSKOGEE, County of 

Muskogee, State of Oklahoma, according to the official plat thereof approved by the Secretary 

of the Interior June the 4th, 1900; thence Southerly along the West line of said Lot 6 a distance 

of 61 feet; thence Easterly to a point on the East line of said Lot 6 to a point on the said East 

line, said point being 62 feet South of the Northeast Corner of said Lot 6; thence Northerly 

along said East line a distance of 62 feet to the Northeast Corner of said Lot 6; thence Westerly 

along the North line of said Lot 6 to the Point of Beginning. 













   
Uniform Building Code Appeals Board Agenda 6.        
Meeting Date: 06/26/2024  
Initiator: Sarah Winkle, Deputy Director of Planning and Community Development

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Hold a public hearing on the appeal of the findings that the structure at 909 W Okmulgee is dilapidated
and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute a public
nuisance, and that the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property; and that the
building is abandoned, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112 (C); 11 O.S. 22-112.4). (Jody King)
 

BACKGROUND:
An exterior inspection of the property and structure occurred on 5/13/2024 by the City Building
Inspector. These are the findings from those inspections:
  

The structure has broken windows that need to be replaced. *108.1.5 IPMC
The structure is unsecure. *108.1.5 IPMC
The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2
IPMC 

Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the
municipality;
Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire
protection costs; and
Devalues abutting and nearby real properties

Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section
22-112(C) and permits and repairs must be made to make this safe and fit for habitation and
occupancy. *108.1.3 IPMC
The structure has an exposed roof.  *108.1.5
The structure is open to the elements.  *108.1.5

Corrective Actions recommended in the letter sent to the property owners were:

Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing
and mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective
International Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe
condition. Windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound condition, good repair,
and weather tight. Any fractures in concrete, masonry, stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be
abated.
 
PNRC was held on June 6, 2024 and the findings were that the building is dilapidated and has become
detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute a public nuisance, and
that the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property; and that the building is
abandoned
 

RECOMMENDED STAFF ACTION:



Uphold the findings of the PNRC and approve the structure for demolition.
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Complete Case File 



















NOTICE OF DILAPIDATION AND LIEN

STATE OF OKLAHOMA )
)

COUNTY OF MUSKOGEE )

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

That the City of Muskogee, in Muskogee County, State of Oklahoma, pursuant to a finding of the building 
official has determined that the following described dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, 
or welfare of the public and the community or that said property creates a fire hazard to other property, and that 
the condition of the following described property a detriment or a hazard and that the property would be 
benefited by the removal of such conditions and that the municipal governing body may cause the dilapidated 
buildings to be torn down and removed.  Said property being listed on the current tax rolls in the office of the 
County Treasurer as being owned by:

LEE NORFLEET and located at 909 W OKMULGEE AVE MUSKOGEE OK 
74401
Land ID#: 000065010
Said property being legally described as follows, to-wit:

MUSKOGEE OT
E100 N150 LOT 3 BLOCK 168
MUSKOGEE OT
 
 
 

And that pursuant to the findings of the municipal officials of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma claims a lien on 
said property for the destruction and removal costs and that such costs are the personal obligation of the property 
owner from and after the date of filing of said notice, according to the laws of the State of Oklahoma.

Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk

CERTIFICATE OF CITY CLERK

I, Tammy L. Tracy, the undersigned, the duly qualified and performing as the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, do 
hereby certify that the above owner has to file a written notice of appeal from the order of the Building Official 
twenty (20) days from the receipt of the Notice/Order letter.  I am required to file this Notice of Dilapidation and 
Lien to be recorded in the office of the County Clerk of Muskogee County for the above property.

WITNESS my hand as City Clerk and the Seal of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, this 
June 18, 2024.

Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk

Gonzalez, Ruben
Code Enforcement Officer

Case Number: 24-00073533











E 100 N 150 LOT 3 BLOCK 168 MUSKOGEE OT 

































 

 

May 21, 2024 

 
Lee Norfleet 

PO Box 872 

Muskogee, OK 74402-0000 

Case Number: 24-73533 

Street Address: 909 W Okmulgee 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

 

ORDER TO REPAIR AND/OR TAKE OTHER CORRECTIVE ACTION 

The City of Muskogee identifies unlawful violations of the International Property Maintenance Code (“IPMC”), 

as adopted by the City of Muskogee under City Codes §18-184 and §18-185, and further identifies structures that 

have become dilapidated per Oklahoma State Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) or abandoned per Section 22-

112.4. These violations constitute a public nuisance and must be abated. An exterior inspection of the property 

and structure you own at the aforementioned address occurred on 05/13/2024 by the City of Muskogee Building 

Inspector. Below are the findings of the Building Inspector with applicable provisions of the IPMC and/or state 

statute, as well as, corrective action which is hereby ordered to bring the property into compliance with City Code.    
 

FINDINGS BY THE BUILDING INSPECTOR: 

 The structure has broken windows that need to be replaced. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is unsecure. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2 IPMC 

o Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the 

municipality; 

o Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire protection 

costs; and 

o Devalues abutting and nearby real properties 

 Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-

112(C) and permits and repairs must be made to make this safe and fit for habitation and occupancy. 

*108.1.3 IPMC 

 The structure has an exposed roof.  *108.1.5 

 The structure is open to the elements.  *108.1.5 

 

 

CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing and 

mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective International 

Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe condition. Windows 

must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound condition, good repair, and weather tight. Any 

fractures in concrete, masonry, stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.  

 

 

You are hereby directed to appear at a hearing to be held on June 6th at 11:00 a.m. before the Public 

Nuisance Review Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma 

74401 to determine:  

 

1) Whether your property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare 

of the general public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or  



 

 

2) If the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property.  

3) Whether the building is abandoned as set out above. 

 

Should you fail to appear, action will be taken in your absence, including but not limited to, action to 

approve demolition and removal of the structure.  

 

If no permit is obtained and corrective action taken by the date of the hearing listed below, or you wish to 

dispute the Order to Repair and/or Take Corrective Action ordered by the Building Inspector, you are 

directed to appear at a hearing to be held on JUNE 6, 2024 at 11 a.m. before the Public Nuisance Review 

Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee (3rd Floor), Muskogee, Oklahoma 74401 to determine: 1) whether your 

property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public 

and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, or 2) if the property creates a fire hazard which is 

dangerous to other property, or 3) whether the building is abandoned. Should you fail to appear, action 

will be taken in your absence, including but not limited to, action to approve demolition and removal of 

the structure.  

You have the right to appeal any decision of the Public Nuisance Review Committee to the UBCAB of the City 

of Muskogee by filing written notice to the City Clerk at P.O. Box 1927, Muskogee, Oklahoma 74401 within 10 

days after the decision is rendered.    

ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH DEMOLITION ABATEMENT WILL BE BILLED TO THE PROPERTY 

OWNER AND A LIEN WILL BE IMPOSED ON THE PROPERTY TO SECURE PAYMENT.  

If you have any questions regarding this, you may contact the Code Enforcement Department at (918) 684-6235.  

If you wish to have the structure voluntarily abated by the City of Muskogee, a discount demolition program is 

available on a first come first serve basis.  If you are interested in this program please contact Ruben Gonzalez, 

Code Enforcement Supervisor for more information. 

 

Ruben Gonzalez 

Code Enforcement Officer 

City of Muskogee 

 

IPMC References 

*108.1.5 – Dangerous Structure or Premises 

*108.2 – Closing of Vacant Structures 

*108.1.3 – Structure Unfit for Human Occupancy 

*108.1.1- Unsafe Structure 



E 100 N 150 LOT 3 BLOCK 168 MUSKOGEE OT 























   
Uniform Building Code Appeals Board Agenda 7.        
Meeting Date: 06/26/2024  
Initiator: Sarah Winkle, Deputy Director of Planning and Community Development

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Hold a public hearing on the appeal of the findings that the structure at 1918 E Okmulgee is dilapidated
and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute a public
nuisance, and that the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property; and that the
building is abandoned, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112 (C); 11 O.S. 22-112.4). (Jody King)
 

BACKGROUND:
An exterior inspection of the property and structure occurred on 5/13/2024 by the City Building
Inspector. These are the findings from those inspections: 

The structure has broken windows that need to be replaced. *108.1.5 IPMC
The structure is unsecure. *108.1.5 IPMC
The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2
IPMC 

Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the
municipality;
Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire
protection costs; and
Devalues abutting and nearby real properties

Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section
22-112(C) and permits and repairs must be made to make this safe and fit for habitation and
occupancy. *108.1.3 IPMC
The structure has an exposed roof.  *108.1.5
The structure is open to the elements.  *108.1.5

 
 
 
Corrective Actions recommended in the letter sent to the property owners were:
Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing
and mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective
Roof needs to be repaired or replaced. International Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be
cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe condition. Windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure
they are in sound condition, good repair, and weather tight. Interior doors shall fit reasonably well within
the frame, capable of being opened and closed, as intended by the manufacturer. The interior shall be
brought to good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Stairs, landings, balconies and
similar walking surfaces, which are not properly anchored, shall be secured. Accumulated rubbish, trash
and debris, including all non-working equipment shall be removed. Any fractures in concrete, masonry,
stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.
 
 
PNRC was held on June 6, 2024 and the findings were that the building is dilapidated and has become
detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute a public nuisance, and



that the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property; and that the building is
abandoned.
 

RECOMMENDED STAFF ACTION:
Uphold the findings of the PNRC and approve the structure for demolition.
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Complete Case File 

























NOTICE OF DILAPIDATION AND LIEN

STATE OF OKLAHOMA )
)

COUNTY OF MUSKOGEE )

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

That the City of Muskogee, in Muskogee County, State of Oklahoma, pursuant to a finding of the building 
official has determined that the following described dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, 
or welfare of the public and the community or that said property creates a fire hazard to other property, and that 
the condition of the following described property a detriment or a hazard and that the property would be 
benefited by the removal of such conditions and that the municipal governing body may cause the dilapidated 
buildings to be torn down and removed.  Said property being listed on the current tax rolls in the office of the 
County Treasurer as being owned by:

GODS NINJA LLC and located at 1918 E OKMULGEE AVE MUSKOGEE OK 
74401
Land ID#: 000090392
Said property being legally described as follows, to-wit:

MCKELLOPS AP
MCKELLOPS AP
LOT 4 BLOCK Q

And that pursuant to the findings of the municipal officials of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma claims a lien on 
said property for the destruction and removal costs and that such costs are the personal obligation of the property 
owner from and after the date of filing of said notice, according to the laws of the State of Oklahoma.

Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk

CERTIFICATE OF CITY CLERK

I, Tammy L. Tracy, the undersigned, the duly qualified and performing as the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, do 
hereby certify that the above owner has to file a written notice of appeal from the order of the Building Official 
twenty (20) days from the receipt of the Notice/Order letter.  I am required to file this Notice of Dilapidation and 
Lien to be recorded in the office of the County Clerk of Muskogee County for the above property.

WITNESS my hand as City Clerk and the Seal of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, this 
June 18, 2024.

Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk

Gonzalez, Ruben
Code Enforcement Officer

Case Number: 24-00073540

















Lot 4 in Block “Q” of MCKELLOP AMENDED ADDITION to the City Muskogee, Muskogee County, State of 

Oklahoma, according to the official plat therof. 

 





Lot 4 in Block “Q” of MCKELLOP AMENDED ADDITION to the City Muskogee, Muskogee County, State of 

Oklahoma, according to the official plat therof. 

 





























 

 

May 21, 2024 

 
Anderson Registered Agents 

3030 NW Expressway Ste 200-166 

Oklahoma City, OK 73112 

Case Number: 24-73540 

Street Address: 1918 E Okmulgee 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

 

ORDER TO REPAIR AND/OR TAKE OTHER CORRECTIVE ACTION 

The City of Muskogee identifies unlawful violations of the International Property Maintenance Code (“IPMC”), 

as adopted by the City of Muskogee under City Codes §18-184 and §18-185, and further identifies structures that 

have become dilapidated per Oklahoma State Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) or abandoned per Section 22-

112.4. These violations constitute a public nuisance and must be abated. An exterior inspection of the property 

and structure you own at the aforementioned address occurred on May 13, 2024 by the City of Muskogee Building 

Inspector. Below are the findings of the Building Inspector with applicable provisions of the IPMC and/or state 

statute, as well as, corrective action which is hereby ordered to bring the property into compliance with City Code.    
 

FINDINGS BY THE BUILDING INSPECTOR: 

 The structure has broken windows that need to be replaced. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is unsecure. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2 IPMC 

o Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the 

municipality; 

o Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire protection 

costs; and 

o Devalues abutting and nearby real properties 

 Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-

112(C) and permits and repairs must be made to make this safe and fit for habitation and occupancy. 

*108.1.3 IPMC 

 The structure has an exposed roof.  *108.1.5 

 The structure is open to the elements.  *108.1.5 

 

 

CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing and 

mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective Roof needs to 

be repaired or replaced. International Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a 

sanitary, and safe condition. Windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound condition, 

good repair, and weather tight. Interior doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being opened 

and closed, as intended by the manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair, structurally sound and 

in a sanitary condition. Stairs, landings, balconies and similar walking surfaces, which are not properly anchored, 

shall be secured. Accumulated rubbish, trash and debris, including all non-working equipment shall be removed. 

Any fractures in concrete, masonry, stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.  

 

You are hereby directed to appear at a hearing to be held on June 6th at 11:00 a.m. before the Public 

Nuisance Review Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma 

74401 to determine:  



 

 

 

1) Whether your property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare 

of the general public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or  

2) If the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property.  

3) Whether the building is abandoned as set out above. 

 

Should you fail to appear, action will be taken in your absence, including but not limited to, action to 

approve demolition and removal of the structure.  

 

If no permit is obtained and corrective action taken by the date of the hearing listed below, or you wish to 

dispute the Order to Repair and/or Take Corrective Action ordered by the Building Inspector, you are 

directed to appear at a hearing to be held on June 6, 2024 at 11 a.m. before the Public Nuisance Review 

Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee (3rd Floor), Muskogee, Oklahoma 74401 to determine: 1) whether your 

property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public 

and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, or 2) if the property creates a fire hazard which is 

dangerous to other property, or 3) whether the building is abandoned. Should you fail to appear, action 

will be taken in your absence, including but not limited to, action to approve demolition and removal of 

the structure.  

You have the right to appeal any decision of the Public Nuisance Review Committee to the UBCAB of the City 

of Muskogee by filing written notice to the City Clerk at P.O. Box 1927, Muskogee, Oklahoma 74401 within 10 

days after the decision is rendered.    

ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH DEMOLITION ABATEMENT WILL BE BILLED TO THE PROPERTY 

OWNER AND A LIEN WILL BE IMPOSED ON THE PROPERTY TO SECURE PAYMENT.  

If you have any questions regarding this, you may contact the Code Enforcement Department at (918) 684-6235.  

If you wish to have the structure voluntarily abated by the City of Muskogee, a discount demolition program is 

available on a first come first serve basis.  If you are interested in this program please contact Ruben Gonzalez, 

Code Enforcement Supervisor for more information. 

 

Ruben Gonzalez 

Code Enforcement Officer 

City of Muskogee 

 

IPMC References 

*108.1.5 – Dangerous Structure or Premises 

*108.2 – Closing of Vacant Structures 

*108.1.3 – Structure Unfit for Human Occupancy 

*108.1.1- Unsafe Structure 



Lot 4 in Block “Q” of MCKELLOP AMENDED ADDITION to the City Muskogee, Muskogee County, State of 

Oklahoma, according to the official plat therof. 

 





 

 

May 21, 2024 

 
God’s Ninja, LLC 

2608 W Kenosha St #330 

Broken Arrow, OK 74012 

Case Number: 24-73540 

Street Address: 1918 E Okmulgee 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

 

ORDER TO REPAIR AND/OR TAKE OTHER CORRECTIVE ACTION 

The City of Muskogee identifies unlawful violations of the International Property Maintenance Code (“IPMC”), 

as adopted by the City of Muskogee under City Codes §18-184 and §18-185, and further identifies structures that 

have become dilapidated per Oklahoma State Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) or abandoned per Section 22-

112.4. These violations constitute a public nuisance and must be abated. An exterior inspection of the property 

and structure you own at the aforementioned address occurred on May 13, 2024 by the City of Muskogee Building 

Inspector. Below are the findings of the Building Inspector with applicable provisions of the IPMC and/or state 

statute, as well as, corrective action which is hereby ordered to bring the property into compliance with City Code.    
 

FINDINGS BY THE BUILDING INSPECTOR: 

 The structure has broken windows that need to be replaced. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is unsecure. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is abandoned as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112.4.  *108.2 IPMC 

o Is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the 

municipality; 

o Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire protection 

costs; and 

o Devalues abutting and nearby real properties 

 Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-

112(C) and permits and repairs must be made to make this safe and fit for habitation and occupancy. 

*108.1.3 IPMC 

 The structure has an exposed roof.  *108.1.5 

 The structure is open to the elements.  *108.1.5 

 

 

CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated abandoned structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing and 

mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective Roof needs to 

be repaired or replaced. International Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a 

sanitary, and safe condition. Windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound condition, 

good repair, and weather tight. Interior doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being opened 

and closed, as intended by the manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair, structurally sound and 

in a sanitary condition. Stairs, landings, balconies and similar walking surfaces, which are not properly anchored, 

shall be secured. Accumulated rubbish, trash and debris, including all non-working equipment shall be removed. 

Any fractures in concrete, masonry, stucco shall be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated.  

 

You are hereby directed to appear at a hearing to be held on June 6th at 11:00 a.m. before the Public 

Nuisance Review Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma 

74401 to determine:  



1) Whether your property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare

of the general public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or

2) If the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property.

3) Whether the building is abandoned as set out above.

Should you fail to appear, action will be taken in your absence, including but not limited to, action to 

approve demolition and removal of the structure.  

If no permit is obtained and corrective action taken by the date of the hearing listed below, or you wish to 

dispute the Order to Repair and/or Take Corrective Action ordered by the Building Inspector, you are 

directed to appear at a hearing to be held on June 6, 2024 at 11 a.m. before the Public Nuisance Review 

Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee (3rd Floor), Muskogee, Oklahoma 74401 to determine: 1) whether your 

property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public 

and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, or 2) if the property creates a fire hazard which is 

dangerous to other property, or 3) whether the building is abandoned. Should you fail to appear, action 

will be taken in your absence, including but not limited to, action to approve demolition and removal of 

the structure.  

You have the right to appeal any decision of the Public Nuisance Review Committee to the UBCAB of the City 

of Muskogee by filing written notice to the City Clerk at P.O. Box 1927, Muskogee, Oklahoma 74401 within 10 

days after the decision is rendered.    

ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH DEMOLITION ABATEMENT WILL BE BILLED TO THE PROPERTY 

OWNER AND A LIEN WILL BE IMPOSED ON THE PROPERTY TO SECURE PAYMENT.  

If you have any questions regarding this, you may contact the Code Enforcement Department at (918) 684-6235.  

If you wish to have the structure voluntarily abated by the City of Muskogee, a discount demolition program is 

available on a first come first serve basis.  If you are interested in this program please contact Ruben Gonzalez, 

Code Enforcement Supervisor for more information. 

Ruben Gonzalez 

Code Enforcement Officer 

City of Muskogee 

IPMC References 

*108.1.5 – Dangerous Structure or Premises

*108.2 – Closing of Vacant Structures

*108.1.3 – Structure Unfit for Human Occupancy

*108.1.1- Unsafe Structure



Lot 4 in Block “Q” of MCKELLOP AMENDED ADDITION to the City Muskogee, Muskogee County, State of 

Oklahoma, according to the official plat therof. 

 







   
Uniform Building Code Appeals Board Agenda 8.        
Meeting Date: 06/26/2024  
Initiator: Sarah Winkle, Deputy Director of Planning and Community Development

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Hold a public hearing on the appeal of the findings that the structure at 228 S D St is dilapidated and has
become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute a public
nuisance; and that the building is abandoned, or take other necessary action (11 O.S. 22-112 (C); 11 O.S.
22-112.4). (Jody King)
 

BACKGROUND:
An exterior inspection of the property and structure occurred on May 1, 2024 by the City Fire Marshall &
on May 13, 2024 by the City of Muskogee Building Inspector. These are the findings from those
inspections:
FINDINGS BY THE BUILDING INSPECTOR: 

The structure has broken windows that need to be replaced. *108.1.5 IPMC
The structure doors are open and not secured and will need to be secured. *108.1.5 IPMC
The structure is: 

Detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the
municipality;
Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire
protection costs; and
Devalues abutting and nearby real properties

Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section
22-112(C) and permits and repairs must be made to make this safe and fit for habitation and
occupancy. *108.1.3 IPMC

 
FINDINGS BY THE FIRE MARSHALL: 

Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section
22-112(C) and permits and repairs must be made to make this safe and fit for habitation and
occupancy. *108.1.3 IPMC
Unsafe structure found to be dangerous to the life, health, property, or safety of the public or the
occupants due to not having minimum safeguards to protect or warn occupants in the event of fire
due to obstructed fire escape stairways, structurally compromised 2nd story porch, & opened
junction boxes with electrical wires exposed to the elements. *108.1.1 IPMC
2018 IFC 111.2: Fire Official in charge of an incident shall be authorized to order the immediate
evacuation of any occupied building deemed unsafe where such building has hazardous conditions
that present imminent danger to building occupants.
2018 IFC 1104.16.7: Fire escape stairways shall be kept clear & unobstructed at all times.
2018 IFC 906.2: Portable fire extinguishers not present.
2018 IFC 1013.1: Exits and exit access doors shall be marked by an approved exit sign readily
visible from any direction of egress travel. The path of egress travel shall not be obstructed.
2018 IFC 315.3.2: Combustible materials shall not be stored in exits or enclosures for stairways
and ramps.



2018 IFC 604.6: Open junction boxes and open wiring splices.
2018 IFC1010.1: Apartment doors and egress doors not operating properly or properly maintained,
2018 IFC 304.1: Waste accumulation throughout the inside and outside of building.
2018 IFC 308.1.4:  Use of open flame cooking device indoors.

 
 
Corrective Actions recommended in the letter sent to the property owners were:
Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing and
mechanical systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective
International Codes; exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe
condition. Exterior doors and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound
condition, good repair, and weather tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants within,
equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior doors shall fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being
opened and closed, as intended by the manufacturer. The interior shall be brought to good repair,
structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Removal of all trash, debris, and waste from within the
interior and exterior of the building. Any fractures in concrete, masonry, stucco shall be repaired. Pest
problems shall be abated. Second floor balcony /porch needs to be repaired or removed.  All stairways
need to be repaired and any obstructions shall be removed. Fire extinguishers need to be in every
apartment readily available for use in case of emergency. Exit signs need to be in proper working order. 
Removal of combustible material and debris from exits and egress points. Electrical system shall be
brought up to code standards by an authorized electrician.  Removal of open flame cooking devices from
within the building and on the 2 nd floor balcony.
 
 
PNRC was held on June 6, 2024 and the findings were that the building is dilapidated and has become
detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public as to constitute a public nuisance; and
that the building is abandoned.
 

RECOMMENDED STAFF ACTION:
Uphold the findings of the PNRC and approve the structure for demolition.
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Complete Case File 





Date of the PNRC Hearing: _ __,{sJIQ"+.j.._.lfLiJ/f--=2.::;:;.4...;;.... ________________ _

Date of P�RC Determination/UBCAB Notice Letter: -·-,.\,,l��Jr'u,_
1
.,./_2.,...4....._. 

_________ _
Gr Certified Mailing Receipt attached to a copy of the letter(s) 

�ages of Notice Posted on Structure for UBCAB Hearing 

�RC Agenda & Approved Minutes 

o/opy of Filed Blank Lien 

Date of UBCAB Reflected in Determination Letter �l!J , �: ......lu__,f«-..�(pf-4/u:J..1. -4.1..· __ _ 
} 

I I 
Date of Publication in the Muskogee Phoenix: �-"'��.:.:u+/.,,,;,,_;......1,&J ____________ _ I I 

c:;/4Jfidavit of Publication 

Date of UBCAB Hearing: _____ u➔l��,c,..>l!u,_,lc...::d-:;_._4..;..._ ____________ _ 
r I 

UBCAB Determination Letter: _______________________ _ 

D Certified Mailing Receipt attached to a copy of the letter 

Date to Demo Structure Reflected in Determination Letter: ____________ _ 

0 UBCAB Agenda & Approved Minutes 

Reviewed By2
:

Sarah Winkle, Acting Deputy Director of Community Development Date 

Ruben Gonzalez, Code Enforcement Officer Date 

D copy of Recorded Lien with Cost (after demo) 

i Review of the file will be conducted the week before the scheduled UBCAB. 



























NOTICE OF DILAPIDATION AND LIEN

STATE OF OKLAHOMA )
)

COUNTY OF MUSKOGEE )

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

That the City of Muskogee, in Muskogee County, State of Oklahoma, pursuant to a finding of the building 
official has determined that the following described dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, 
or welfare of the public and the community or that said property creates a fire hazard to other property, and that 
the condition of the following described property a detriment or a hazard and that the property would be 
benefited by the removal of such conditions and that the municipal governing body may cause the dilapidated 
buildings to be torn down and removed.  Said property being listed on the current tax rolls in the office of the 
County Treasurer as being owned by:

BENJAMIN PAUL SAUNDERS and located at 228 S D ST MUSKOGEE OK 
74401
Land ID#: 000069888
Said property being legally described as follows, to-wit:

MUSKOGEE OT
N56 LOT 4 BLOCK 380
MUSKOGEE OT
 
 
 

And that pursuant to the findings of the municipal officials of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma claims a lien on 
said property for the destruction and removal costs and that such costs are the personal obligation of the property 
owner from and after the date of filing of said notice, according to the laws of the State of Oklahoma.

Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk

CERTIFICATE OF CITY CLERK

I, Tammy L. Tracy, the undersigned, the duly qualified and performing as the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, do 
hereby certify that the above owner has to file a written notice of appeal from the order of the Building Official 
twenty (20) days from the receipt of the Notice/Order letter.  I am required to file this Notice of Dilapidation and 
Lien to be recorded in the office of the County Clerk of Muskogee County for the above property.

WITNESS my hand as City Clerk and the Seal of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, this 
June 18, 2024.

Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk

Gonzalez, Ruben
Code Enforcement Officer

Case Number: 24-00073519























The North 56 of Lot 4 Block 380 in the city of Muskogee, according to the official plat thereof, Muskogee 

County, State of Oklahoma. 





























 

 

May 14, 2024 

 
Benjamin Paul Saunders 

228 S D St Apt 4 

Muskogee, OK 74403-0000 

Case Number: 24-73519 

Street Address: 228 S D St 

Legal Description:  SEE ATTACHED 

 

ORDER TO REPAIR AND/OR TAKE OTHER CORRECTIVE ACTION 

The City of Muskogee identifies unlawful violations of the International Property Maintenance Code (“IPMC”), 

as adopted by the City of Muskogee under City Codes §18-184 and §18-185, and further identifies structures that 

have become dilapidated per Oklahoma State Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C). This violation constitutes a 

public nuisance and must be abated. An interior & exterior inspection of the property and structure you own at 

the aforementioned address occurred on May 1, 2024 by the City Fire Marshall & on May 13, 2024 by the City 

of Muskogee Building Inspector. Below are the findings of the Fire Marshall and Building Inspector with 

applicable provisions of the IPMC and/or state statute, as well as, corrective action which is hereby ordered to 

bring the property into compliance with City Code.   
 

FINDINGS BY THE BUILDING INSPECTOR: 
 The structure has broken windows that need to be replaced. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure doors are open and not secured and will need to be secured. *108.1.5 IPMC 

 The structure is:  

o Detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants of and visitors to the 

municipality; 

o Causes increased municipal regulatory costs and increased municipal police and fire protection 

costs; and 

o Devalues abutting and nearby real properties 

 Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-

112(C) and permits and repairs must be made to make this safe and fit for habitation and occupancy. 

*108.1.3 IPMC 

 

FINDINGS BY THE FIRE MARSHALL: 

 Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous as defined by Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-

112(C) and permits and repairs must be made to make this safe and fit for habitation and occupancy. 

*108.1.3 IPMC 

 Unsafe structure found to be dangerous to the life, health, property, or safety of the public or the occupants 

due to not having minimum safeguards to protect or warn occupants in the event of fire due to obstructed 

fire escape stairways, structurally compromised 2nd story porch, & opened junction boxes with electrical 

wires exposed to the elements. *108.1.1 IPMC 

 2018 IFC 111.2: Fire Official in charge of an incident shall be authorized to order the immediate 

evacuation of any occupied building deemed unsafe where such building has hazardous conditions that 

present imminent danger to building occupants. 

 2018 IFC 1104.16.7: Fire escape stairways shall be kept clear & unobstructed at all times. 

 2018 IFC 906.2: Portable fire extinguishers not present. 

 2018 IFC 1013.1: Exits and exit access doors shall be marked by an approved exit sign readily visible 

from any direction of egress travel. The path of egress travel shall not be obstructed. 

 2018 IFC 315.3.2: Combustible materials shall not be stored in exits or enclosures for stairways and ramps. 

 2018 IFC 604.6: Open junction boxes and open wiring splices. 



 

 

 2018 IFC1010.1: Apartment doors and egress doors not operating properly or properly maintained, 

 2018 IFC 304.1: Waste accumulation throughout the inside and outside of building. 

 2018 IFC 308.1.4:  Use of open flame cooking device indoors. 

 

CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

Rehabilitate or demolish the dilapidated structure. For rehabilitation, all electrical, plumbing and mechanical 

systems must be reconnected in good working order in accordance with the respective International Codes; 

exterior of the property and grounds shall be cleaned and kept in a sanitary, and safe condition. Exterior doors 

and windows must be replaced where necessary to ensure they are in sound condition, good repair, and weather 

tight. Doors shall provide for the security of occupants within, equipped with a deadbolt lock. Interior doors shall 

fit reasonably well within the frame, capable of being opened and closed, as intended by the manufacturer. The 

interior shall be brought to good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Removal of all trash, debris, 

and waste from within the interior and exterior of the building. Any fractures in concrete, masonry, stucco shall 

be repaired. Pest problems shall be abated. Second floor balcony /porch needs to be repaired or removed.  All 

stairways need to be repaired and any obstructions shall be removed. Fire extinguishers need to be in every 

apartment readily available for use in case of emergency. Exit signs need to be in proper working order.  Removal 

of combustible material and debris from exits and egress points. Electrical system shall be brought up to code 

standards by an authorized electrician..  Removal of open flame cooking devices from within the building and on 

the 2nd floor balcony. 

 

You are hereby directed to appear at a hearing to be held on June 6th at 11:00 a.m. before the Public 

Nuisance Review Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee 3rd Floor, City Council Chamber, Muskogee, Oklahoma 

74401 to determine:  

 

1) Whether your property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare 

of the general public and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, and/or  

2) If the property creates a fire hazard which is dangerous to other property.  

 

Should you fail to appear, action will be taken in your absence, including but not limited to, action to 

approve demolition and removal of the structure.  

 

If no permit is obtained and corrective action taken by the date of the hearing listed below, or you wish to 

dispute the Order to Repair and/or Take Corrective Action ordered by the Building Inspector, you are 

directed to appear at a hearing to be held on June 6, 2024 at 11 a.m. before the Public Nuisance Review 

Committee at 229 W. Okmulgee (3rd Floor), Muskogee, Oklahoma 74401 to determine: 1) whether your 

property is dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the general public 

and the community as to constitute a public nuisance, or 2) if the property creates a fire hazard which is 

dangerous to other property, or 3) whether the building is abandoned. Should you fail to appear, action 

will be taken in your absence, including but not limited to, action to approve demolition and removal of 

the structure.  

You have the right to appeal any decision of the Public Nuisance Review Committee to the UBCAB of the City 

of Muskogee by filing written notice to the City Clerk at P.O. Box 1927, Muskogee, Oklahoma 74401 within 10 

days after the decision is rendered.    



 

 

ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH DEMOLITION ABATEMENT WILL BE BILLED TO THE PROPERTY 

OWNER AND A LIEN WILL BE IMPOSED ON THE PROPERTY TO SECURE PAYMENT.  

If you have any questions regarding this, you may contact the Code Enforcement Department at (918) 684-6235.  

If you wish to have the structure voluntarily abated by the City of Muskogee, a discount demolition program is 

available on a first come first serve basis.  If you are interested in this program please contact Ruben Gonzalez, 

Code Enforcement Supervisor for more information. 

 

Ruben Gonzalez 

Code Enforcement Officer 

City of Muskogee 

 

IPMC References 

*108.1.5 – Dangerous Structure or Premises/Doors Unsecured/Windows Broken 

*108.1.3 – Structure Unfit for Human Occupancy 

 

IFC References 

*2018 IFC 111.2 Immediate evacuation due to unsafe structure 

*2018 IFC 1104.16.7 Fire escape stairways 

*2018 IFC 906.2 Fire extinguishers 

*2018 IFC 1013.1 Marked exit and egress points 

*2018 IFC315.3.2 Combustible material storage 

*2018 IFC 604.6 Electrical junction box and electrical wiring standards 

*2018 IFC 1010.1 Doors and egress doors standards 

*2018 IFC 304.1 Waste accumulation 

*2018 308.1.4 Use of open flame devices indoors 

 

Oklahoma Statue Title References 

* Unfit for human habitation / unsafe and dangerous Oklahoma Statute Title 11 Section 22-112(C) 



The North 56 of Lot 4 Block 380 in the city of Muskogee, according to the official plat thereof, Muskogee 

County, State of Oklahoma. 


































	Agenda
	AI_1469614696
	       ATT_24-0501 Minutes
	AI_14629_321 E Okmulgee
	       ATT_Complete Case File
	1) Complete Case File PNRC
	Dilap Struct Checklist
	Affidavit to Publish
	Letter to Paper to Publish
	Return Envelope
	Return Envelope Receipt
	Walter Ridge page 1 3.21.24
	Walter Ridge page 2 and 3 3.21.24
	Bld Inspec and Pics

	321 E Okmulgee Blank Lien
	2)UBCAB Affidavit of Publishing
	2) UBCAB Pic Postings
	2) UBCAB Letter Cert_Returned
	2) UBCAB Letter Cert_Returned_Green Card
	2) UBCAB Letter Cert
	Legal
	4.18.24 PNRC Minutes

	AI_14630_210 N Main Street
	       ATT_Complete Case File
	1) 210 N Main Complete Case File PNRC
	Cert Mail Receipt 1701 no 2
	Cert Mail Receipt 1701
	Cert Mail receipt PO Box address 2
	Cert Mail receipt PO Box address
	Left Side of Folder
	Return Envelope Copies Back
	Return Envelope Copies Front
	right side

	2) 210 N Main FILED Blank Lien
	2)UBCAB Newspaper Notice for 5.29.24 Meeting
	2) Affidavit of Publication UBCAB
	2) Correspondence
	2) Back Page Correspondence
	2) Aff od Pub Spec Call UBCAB 5.1.24
	2)UBCAB Newspaper Notice for 5.1.24 Meeting
	2) 210 N Main Hold Cert Letter_Returned Mail_UBCAB
	2) 210 N main  Cert Letter_Returned Mail_Green Card UBCAB
	2) 210 Main Ent. Cert Letter UBCAB
	2) RBI Cert Letter_Returned Mail_UBCAB
	2) RBI Cert Letter_Returned Mail_Green Card UBCAB
	2) RBI Cert Letter UBCAB
	2) 4.4.24 PNRC Minutes
	2) AGENDApacket__04-04-24_1116_4340

	AI_14631_800 S 32nd
	       ATT_Complete Case File 24-73360
	3) 800 S 32nd Blank Lien
	3) 24-0626 Affidavit of Publication
	3) Notice to Paper UBCAB 6.26
	3) UBCAB Posting Pics
	3) UBCAB Cert Letter Michael Soraya 4220 NW 10th 6.26
	3) PNRC Dilapidated Structures Determination Letter 6.5.24
	3) UBCAB Cert Letter Musk Grnd Hotel 6.26
	3) PNRC Dilapidated Structures Determination Letter Muskogee Grand Hotel 6.5.24
	1) Complete PNRC 5.23 Case File 800 S 32nd
	1) Complete PNRC Case File 800 S 32nd
	Affidavit of Pub
	Page 1 letter 3.25.24 Musk Grnd Hotel
	Page 2 and 3 letter 3.25.24 Musk Grnd Hotel
	Page 1 letter 3.25.24 M Soraya
	Page 2 and 3 letter 3.25.24 M Soraya
	Page 1 letter 3.18.24 Musk Grnd Hotel
	Page 2 and 3 letter 3.18.24 Musk Grnd Hotel
	Page 1 letter 3.18.24 M Soraya
	Page 2 and 3 letter 3.18.24 M Soraya
	Page 1 letter 3.14.24 Musk Grnd Hotel
	Page 1 letter 3.14.24 M Soraya
	Page 2 and 3 letter 3.14.24 Musk Grnd Hotel
	Page 2 and 3 letter 3.4.24 M Soraya
	Post Pics

	2) Fire Report
	2) PNRC postings
	2) Correspondence
	2) Correspondence 2


	AI_14671_316 N Main
	       ATT_Complete Case File 24-73542
	3) 24-0626 Affidavit of Publication
	3) 316 N Main Blank Lien
	3) Notice to Paper UBCAB 6.26
	3) Page 2 Dilapidated Checklist
	3) PNRC Agenda and Minutes 6.6
	3) UBCAB Cert Letter Growers 6.26
	3) UBCAB Cert Letter L. Workman 6.26
	3) UBCAB Posted Pics
	1) Complete Case File PNRC
	2) Dilapidated Checklist
	2) Deed
	2) Tax Roll
	2) Assessors
	2) Land Records
	2) OK SOS
	2) Aff of Pub PNRC
	2) Posting Pics
	2) Cert Letter
	Dilapidated Structure 2
	Legal
	2) Cert Letter_Growers Essen
	Dilapidated Structure
	2) Bldg Insp Checklist
	2) Property Pics


	AI_14677_909 W Okmulgee
	       ATT_Complete Case File
	1) Complete Case File PNRC
	2) Dilapidated Checklist
	2) Deed
	2) Tax Roll
	2) Assessor
	2) Land Records
	2) Aff of Pub PNRC
	2) Posting Pics
	2) Cert Ltr
	Dilapidated Structure Hearing
	Legal
	2) Bldg Insp Checklist
	2) Prop Pics

	3) Pg 2 Dilapidated Checklist
	3) 24-0626 Affidavit of Publication_1
	3) 909 W Okmulgee Blank Lien
	3) Notice to Paper UBCAB 6.26
	3) PNRC Agenda and Minutes from 6.6
	3) UBCAB Cert Letter Lee Norfleet PO Box 6.26
	3) UBCAB Post Pics 6.26

	AI_14679_1918 E Okmulgee
	       ATT_Complete Case File
	3) 1918 e okmulgee blank lien
	3) Notice to Paper
	3) Posted Pics
	3) Cert Letter Anderson
	3) Cert Letter Gods Ninja
	3) PNRC Agenda and Minutes 6.6
	1) Complete Case File PNRC
	2) Dilapidated Checklist
	2) Deed
	2) Deed pg 2
	2) Tax Roll
	2) Assessor
	2) Land Records
	2) OK SOS
	2) Aff of Pub PNRC
	2) Posting Pics
	2) Cert Ltr_Anderson Reg Agents
	Dilapidated Structure Hearing 05.21.24 2_Anderson Reg Agents
	2) Cert Ltr_Gods Ninja
	Dilapidated Structure Hearing 05.21.24_Gods Ninja
	Legal
	2) Bldg Insp Checklist


	AI_14682_228 S D St
	       ATT_Complete Case File
	3) Pg 2
	3) 228 S D Blank Lien
	3) Aff of Pub UBCAB
	3) Notice to Paper
	3) Pic Posting
	3) Cert Letter Ben
	3) PNRC Agenda and Minutes 6.6
	1) Complete Case File PNRC
	2) Dilapidated Checklist
	Deed - 228 S D
	2) Mtg
	2) Tax Roll
	2) Assessor
	2) Land Records
	2) Aff of Pub PNRC
	2) Posting Pics
	2) Cert Letter
	Dilapidated Structure Hearing-05.02.24
	Legal - 228 S D
	2) Bldg Insp Checklist
	2) Signed Violations FD
	2) Pics
	DSCN0806
	DSCN0807
	DSCN0808
	DSCN0809
	DSCN0810
	DSCN0811
	DSCN0812
	DSCN0813




